Regular Council Meeting Agenda
Tuesday November 4%, 2025| 1:30PM | Lake Louise Sport & Recreation Centre

1. Call Meeting to Order

a.

Land Acknowledgement

2. Adoption of Agenda / Call For Additions

3. Adoption of Council Minutes

a.

Regular Council Meeting — Tuesday, October 14th 2025

Financial Reports
a.

None To Report

5. Delegations

a.

b.
C.
d.

Standing Council Update - Alberta Municipal Affairs (no attachments)
i. Appointment Process, Organizational Meeting Requirements, etc.
Standing Council Update - RCMP (no attachments)
Standing Council Update - Parks Canada (no attachments)
Standing Council Update - Lake Louise Fire Department (no attachments)

6. Business & Discussion ltems

a.

1369058 Alberta Society Grant Request

7. CAO & Committee Reports/Roundtable (no attachments)

a.
b.

CAOQ Report
Council Roundtable

8. Correspondence & Reports

a.

AT T S0 o oo

Town of Banff September 08, 2025, Supplementary Public Hearing for Proposed Bylaw 490, The Banff Community plan, and Regular
Meeting of Council

Town of Banff September 16, 2025, Special Meeting of Council Re: Third Reading of Proposed Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan,
as Amended, and Completion of Unfinished Items from September 08, 2025

Town of Banff September 29, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council

Banff Parks Canada Stakeholder update | Upcoming Wildfire Risk Reduction Project for Banff Field Unit

LLYK Parks Canada Staff & Stakeholder Update - Limited Office Hours for Townsites (Week of October 27, 2025)

TIAA Alberta Tourism Insights - October 17, 2025

BCF Listening, Learning, and Giving Thanks

BVRH Board Minutes September 2025, October 2025 - BVRH Bulletin, October 2025 - Occupancy & Waitlist reports

Letter from Jan Simpson, CUPW National President

GoA Information Bulletin 6/2025 Key Municipal Dates October 1 to December 31

Exciting New Employee Accommodations at The Gateway!

CBR-24-0459 - FCM Funding Decision

9. Upcoming Meetings

a.

TBD

10. Closed Session

a.
b.

Lake Louise Fire Hall Update - covered under section 26 of the Access to Information Act
Intergovernmental Review Discussion - covered under section 26 of the Access to Information Act

11. Adjournment



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
of the Improvement District No. 9 (BANFF) in the Province of Alberta
October 14, 2025 at 1:30pm
Lake Louise Sport & Recreation Centre & Zoom

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT

Dave Schebek
Jean-Marc Stelter
Don Beaulieu

Julie Canning
Alexandra Parkinson

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT

ADMINISTRATION PRESENT
Danielle Duffy

Kurtis Pratt

Kassidy Stevens

ADMINISTRATION ABSENT

VISITING OFFICIALS
Nathan Pitcher
Michael Buxton-Carr
Irfan Ansari

Dino Sorrentino
Dillon St. Lewis
Tracey Leblanc

Chair

Vice Chair
Councillor (Remote)
Councillor (Remote)
Councillor

Chief Administrative Officer
Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Legislative Assistant (Remote)

Detachment Corporal Lake Louise RCMP
Detachment Commander Banff RCMP

Municipal Advisor, Improvement Districts Alberta Municipal Affairs
Project Manager Alberta Infrastructure
Captain Lake Louise Fire Department
Townsites and Realty Manager Parks Canada, LLYK

1. CALLTO ORDER

Chair Schebek called the October 14, 2025 Regular Council Meeting to order at 1:30pm.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

01-14-10-2025 Chair Schebek MOVED to accept the October 14, 2025 Council Meeting agenda as presented.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Councillor Canning entered the meeting at 1:31pm.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

02-14-10-2025

03-14-10-2025

4. FINANCIAL REPORTS

04-14-10-2025

05-14-10-2025

5. DELEGATIONS

Chair Schebek MOVED to accept the August 12, 2025 Regular Council Meeting minutes as presented.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Chair Schebek MOVED to accept the September 16, 2025 Regular Council Meeting minutes as presented.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Chair Schebek MOVED to accept the June Financial Reports as presented.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Chair Schebek MOVED to accept the August Financial Reports as presented.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

a. Alberta Municipal Affairs Standing Update

Improvement District No. 9, Banff National Park — Council Meeting Minutes October 14, 2025 1|Page



Irfan Ansari of Alberta Municipal Affairs updated Council that the new Municipal Advisor for the ID will
be starting in mid-November and mentioned the Provincial Priorities Act and how it relates to
Improvement Districts.

b. RCMP Standing Update

Corporal Nathan Pitcher with the Lake Louise RCMP Detachment provided Council an update regarding recent RCMP activity,
public education efforts, recent investigations, a commercial vehicle inspection, and recent check stops.

Commander Michael Buxton-Carr of the Banff RCMP Detachment provided an update on operations, a recent check stop,
staffing updates, and activity overall during the first snowfall.

c. Parks Canada Standing Update

Tracey Leblanc of Parks Canada provided Council with an update on the Fire Guard project and the community plans.

d. Lake Louise Fire Department
Captain Dillon St. Lewis of the LLFD provided an update on call volume, community engagement efforts, training, and
recruitment.

e. Alberta Infrastructure
Dino Sorrentino of Alberta Infrastructure provided Council an update on the Fire Hall and Multi-Unit Residential projects.

6. BUSINESS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

a. RARB Complaint Hearing October 9th
CAO Duffy informed Council that a Complaint Hearing with the assessment review board was scheduled for October 9, 2025,
but prior to the beginning of the meeting, all three applicants withdrew their complaints.

b. Storm Mountain Tax Payment

06-14-10-2025 Councillor Parkinson MOVED that administration remove the penalties from Storm Mountain’s Tax
Accounts.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

c. Strategy Review Summary

07-14-10-2025 Chair Schebek MOVED to approve the 2025 Strategy Review Summary as presented.
MOTION CARRIED
Those in favour: Chair Schebek, Councillors Beaulieu, Parkinson, and Stelter
Abstained: Councillor Canning

CAO & COMMITTEE REPORTS/COUNCIL ROUNDTABLE

a. CAO Report
i. Commercial Business Update
CAO Duffy informed Council on a number of changes happening to businesses within Lake Louise, highlighting the
effects of changes to the fuel stations.

08-14-10-2025 Councillor Beaulieu MOVED that administration reach out to Parks Canada about placing signs that indicate
that there is currently no diesel in Lake Louise.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Councillor Canning left the meeting at 2:25pm.

ii. 2026 Budget Process
CAO Duffy provided Council with an update on the timeline for the 2026 Budget and inquired if there was anything
specific that Council would like to include.

Improvement District No. 9, Banff National Park — Council Meeting Minutes October 14, 2025 2|Page



b. Council Roundtable

Chair Schebek provided a verbal report to Council on his attendance at the most recent Bow Valley Regional Transit Services
Meeting and offered insight into his attendance at the Strategy Review Session for ID9 for those who were unable to attend.

Vice Chair Stelter provided a verbal report to Council on his attendance at an AMPEE board meeting.

Councillor Beaulieu provided a verbal report to Council on his attendance at the most recent Bow Valley Regional Housing
Meeting.

Councillor Parkinson provided a verbal report to Council on the work being done by the Bow Valley Food Alliance to revamp their
deliveries of fresh food boxes.

7. CORRESPONDENCE & REPORTS

09-14-10-2025 Chair Schebek MOVED accept the correspondence and reports as information.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

9. UPCOMING MEETINGS

Tuesday, November 4th, 2025 | 9:00am Oath of Office, Council Orientation, Organizational Meeting, & Photos | Lake Louise
Sport & Recreation Centre AND Virtual.

Tuesday, November 4th, 2025 | 1:30pm Regular Council Meeting | Lake Louise Sport & Recreation Centre AND Virtual.

10. CLOSED SESSION
10-14-10-2025 Chair Schebek MOVED that due to Sections 16 & 21 of the Freedom of Information & Protection of Privacy Act
that the meeting be taken into Closed Session to discuss some confidential matters of Council business at 2:39pm.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

The following people remained in the closed session:
. Danielle Duffy, Chief Administrative Officer

. Kurtis Pratt, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
. Kassidy Stevens, Legislative Assistant

11-14-10-2025 Chair Schebek MOVED to end the Closed Session at 2:41pm.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

11. ADJOURNMENT

11-14-10-2025 Chair Schebek MOVED to adjourn the October 14, 2025 Regular Council Meeting at 2:42pm.
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Minutes Approved on the 4t of November 2025.

Chair — Dave Schebek

Chief Administrative Officer — Danielle Duffy

Improvement District No. 9, Banff National Park — Council Meeting Minutes October 14, 2025 3|Page



Issue Brief
2026-11-04

Agenda Item 6a. | 2026 Operating & Capital Grant Request 1369058 Alberta Society

Background

The Lake Louise Sport & Recreation Centre (1369058 Alberta Society) is requesting approval for their annual operating &
capital grant. Please find attached the budget breakdown for your review. The Fiscal Year for this society begins on
January 1st, so an approved grant is required to proceed. This budget was approved by the Lake Louise Sport &
Recreation Society at their October Board meeting.

Every effort was made in 2025 to find additional revenue sources and find savings where possible to offset the increases
to the capital & operational budget.

Some highlights from the budget changes include:

2025 Fund Request: $750,372.08
2026 Fund Request: $750,661.87

2025 Budgeted Revenue: $120,492.00
2026 Budgeted Revenue: $151,992.00

2025 Budgeted Expenses: $852,730.23
2026 Budgeted Expenses: $908,453.63

2025 Capital: $121,000.00
2026 Capital: $170,000.00

Total 2025 BUDGET: $928,232.23
Total 2025 BUDGET: $926,461.63

Recommendation

That the council approve the grant request for the 1369058 Alberta Society for the amount requested, or resolve to
grant the Society a different value.



LLSRC Request

January 1st, 2026 to December 31st, 2026

2026 Budget Summary

Type Annual Total
Operational Request| S 908,453.63
Operational Revenue| $ 151,992.00
Capital Request| $ 170,000.00
Total Budget | S 926,461.63
Year End Bank Balance| $ 620,799.76
Operating Reserve| $ 325,000.00
Sidewalk Project Carryforward| $ 110,000.00
Contingency| $ 10,000.00
Full Balance To Be Deducted | S 175,799.76
TOTAL ID9 REQUEST FOR 2026| $ 750,661.87

Comparison Data

2025 Request S 750,372.08
2024 Request S 750,372.08
2023 Request S 570,876.53
2022 Request S 377,315.52
2021 Request S 336,522.21
2020 Request S 542,954.83
2019 Request S 1,051,429.90




LLSRC Budget Summary

January 1st, 2026 to December 31st, 2026

GL Code Definition 2024 Budget 2024 Actuals 2025 Budget 2025 Actuals (2025-10-28) 2025 Projected Actuals 2025 Over/Under 2026 Request % Variance From 2025 Budget  $ Variance From 2025 Budget
4030 Indoor Room Rental $ 10,000.00 | $ 9,160.99 | $ 8,000.00 | $ 12,282.00 | $ 1,282.00 | $ 6,718.00 | $ 9,500.00 119% S 1,500.00
4035 Mobile Items Rental S 200.00 | $ 510.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 310.00 | $ 350.00 | $ 150.00 | $ 500.00 100% S -
4040 Baseball Revenue S 5,000.00 | $ 7,883.00 | $ 6,000.00 | $ 6,269.75 | S 6,269.75 | $ (269.75)] S 6,000.00 100% S -
4070 Arena/Ice Rental S 5,500.00 | $ 1,817.66 | $ 2,000.00 | $ 7,715.00 | $ 7,715.00 | $ (5,715.00)] S 2,000.00 100% S -
4100 Hockey Revenue S 2,000.00 | $ 184.50 | $ 3,000.00 | $ 3,110.00 | $ 3,110.00 | $ (110.00)] s 3,000.00 100% S -
4110 Other Revenue S 250.00 | $ 180.00 | $ 250.00 S - S 250.00 | S 250.00 100% S -
4120 Fitness Classes S 4,500.00 | $ 3,71021 | $ 3,000.00 | $ 1,852.42 | S 2,222.90 | $ 777.10 | S 3,000.00 100% S -
4160 Services Rendered S 500.00 | $ 1,126.09 | $ 500.00 | $ 327.50 | S 32750 | $ 17250 | $ 500.00 100% S -
4210 Community Events S 500.00 | $ 1,200.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 762.00 | S 762.00 | $ (262.00)] S 500.00 100% S -
4220 Summer Camp S 7,392.00 | $ 9,549.33 | $ 7,392.00 | $ 8,156.50 | S 8,156.50 | $ (764.50)] S 7,392.00 100% S -
4240 Education & Training Revenue S 1,500.00 | $ 1,365.00 | $ 1,500.00 | $ 21,593.50 | $ 21,593.50 | $ (20,093.50)] s 1,500.00 100% S -
4420 Donations S 200.00 | $ 646.72 | S 200.00 | $ 1,485.45 | S 1,485.45 | S (1,285.45)] S 200.00 100% S -
4440 Grants $  14,056.00 | $ 569.36 | S 2,000.00 | $ 7,040.64 | $ 7,040.64 | $ (5,040.64)] $ 2,000.00 100% $ -
4450 Drop-In User Fees & Memberships $  36,000.00 | $ 111,127.31 | $  85,000.00 | $ 89,033.92 [ $ 106,840.70 | $ (21,840.70)] $ 115,000.00 135% S 30,000.00
4460 Program Revenue $ 500.00 | $ 600.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 100.00 | $ 100.00 | $ 400.00 | $ 500.00 100% $ -
4465 Interest Earned S 150.00 | $ 284.11 | $ 150.00 | $ 348.00 | $ 417.60 | S (267.60)] S 150.00 100% S -

Total Revenue S 88248.00 s 149,914.28 | § 120,492.00 | S 160,386.68 | s 167,673.55 | S (47,181.55)] $§ 151,992.00 126% S 31,500.00

GL Code Definition 2024 Budget 2024 Actuals 025 Budge 025 Actua 0 0-28 025 Projected Actua 025 Ove de 026 Reque % Variance Fro 025 Budge ariance Fro 025 Budge
1820 Office Furniture & Equipment S -
1860 Buildings S -
2300 GST Rebate $ -
5400 Wages & Salaries $ 358,966.40 | $ 386,132.28 | § 399,224.56 | $ 274,472.77 | $ 346,702.45 | $ 52,522.11 | $ 422,636.91 106% S 23,412.35
5420 CPP Expense $  20,609.58 | $ 18,565.61 | $  22,168.03 | $ 15,512.11 | $ 19,594.24 | $ 2,573.79 | $  23,774.08 107% $ 1,606.05
5430 El Expense S 5,916.48 | S 7,423.78 | $ 6,627.13 [ $ 6,353.34 | S 8,025.27 [ $ (1,398.14)] $ 6,931.25 105% S 304.12
5440 WCB Expense S 5016.73 | § 544593 | $ 6,834.70 | § 4,734.82 | S 5,980.83 | § 853.88 | $ 5,460.00 80% S (1,374.70)
5450 Amortization S 99,043.52 S - S - S -
5464 Payroll Processing Fees S 2,080.00 | S 2,27830 | $ 2,210.00 | $ 1,747.50 | $ 2,207.37 | $ 263]S 2,600.00 118% S 390.00
5465 Fitness Instructor Contractors S 13,400.00 | § 7,413.73 | $  10,800.00 | $ 5,750.00 | $ 7,263.16 | § 3,536.84 | $  10,800.00 100% S -
5470 Employee Benefits S 43,927.17 | $ 13,41458 | $  56,527.01 | $ 35,503.11 | § 50,000.00 | $ 6,527.01 | $  54,957.63 97% S (1,569.38)
5480 Uniforms S 4,000.00 | $ 1,379.57 | $ 3,000.00 | $ 1,236.44 | $ 3,000.00 | $ - S 3,000.00 100% $ -
5490 Honorariums S 500.00 S 500.00 | $ 103.85 | $ 200.00 | $ 300.00 | $ 500.00 100% S -
5610 Accounting & Legal S 4,000.00 | $ 3,892.68 | $ 4,000.00 | $ 4,308.92 | $ 4,500.00 | $ (500.00)| $ 2,500.00 63% S (1,500.00)
5615 Advertising & Promotions S 1,500.00 [ $ 102.50 | $ 500.00 | $ 262.50 | $ 262.50 | $ 23750 | $ 500.00 100% S -
5625 Business Fees & Licenses S 3,425.00 | § 2,010.00 | $ 4,025.00 | $ 4,734.71 | $ 5,500.00 | $ (1,475.00)] $ 4,250.00 106% $ 225.00
5640 Courier & Postage S 5,500.00 | $ 2,079.76 | $ 5,000.00 | $ 1,610.86 | $ 2,034.77 | $ 2,965.23 | $ 4,000.00 80% S (1,000.00)
5645 Cleaning Supplies $  13,000.00 | $ 6,584.11 | $  10,250.00 | $ 6,419.04 | § 8,108.26 | $ 2,141.74 | $  10,050.00 98% S (200.00)
5685 Insurance $ 17,17131 | $ 16,260.78 | $  15,400.00 S 15,400.00 | $ - $  17,886.86 116% $ 2,486.86
5690 Interest & Bank Charges S 9,600.00 | $ 6,773.59 | $ 9,600.00 | $ 6,068.44 | § 7,665.40 | $ 1,934.60 | $  10,300.00 107% $ 700.00
5700 Office Supplies $  28,596.00 | $ 26,052.19 | §  18,426.00 [ $ 10,326.81 | $ 13,044.39 [ $ 538161 |$ 23,510.00 128% $ 5,084.00
5720 Other Operating S - S - S -
5730 Motor Vehicle Expenses S 2,000.00 | $ 1,093.59 | $ 2,000.00 | $ 459.72 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 2,000.00 100% $ -
5735 Gas & Propane $  13,520.00 | $ 11,401.10 | $  13,520.00 | $ 6,867.53 | $ 8,674.77 | $ 4,84523 | $  12,320.00 91% $ (1,200.00)
5745 Canada Day $ 10,500.00 | $ 8,582.65|$ 10,500.00 | $ 3,655.50 | § 3,655.50 | $ 6,844.50 | $  10,500.00 100% S -
5750 Community Events Expenses $ 17,250.00 | $ 20,697.35] 8 16,750.00 [ $ 9,420.82 | § 16,000.00 | $ 750.00 | $  15,750.00 94% $ (1,000.00)
5755 Kids Camp Expenses $  14,000.00 | $ 6,612.09 | $  14,800.00 | $ 8,102.28 | $ 8,102.28 | $ 6,697.72 | $  17,300.00 117% $ 2,500.00
5760 Repair & Maintenance - Arena $ 50,200.00 | $ 32,240.19 | $  61,100.00 | $ 32,150.54 | § 60,000.00 | $ 1,100.00 | $  76,403.00 125% $ 15,303.00
5765 Repair & Maintenance - Facility S 43,44758 | $ 31,311.68 | §  35,770.00 | $ 52,852.12 | $ 55,000.00 | $ (19,230.00)] $  49,070.00 137% $ 13,300.00




5770 Repair & Maintenance - Equipment S 11,200.00 | S 4,116.86 | $ 9,300.00 | $ 7,928.95 | $ 8,500.00 | $ 800.00 | $ 4,500.00 48% S (4,800.00)
5775 Shop Tools & Supplies S 5,500.00 | S 7,700.52 | $ 5,350.00 | $ 1,808.22 | $ 3,000.00 | $ 2,350.00 | $ 4,000.00 75% S (1,350.00)
5780 Communications S 7,620.00 | S 5,029.73 | $ 7,620.00 | $ 4,727.50 | $ 5,971.58 | $ 1,648.42 | S 6,180.00 81% S (1,440.00)
5784 Travel Meals S 4,910.00 | $ 45347 | $ 1,450.00 | $ 303.41 | S 500.00 | $ 950.00 | $ 300.00 21% S (1,150.00)
5785 Staff Housing Expenses S 6,860.00 | S 546.42 | $ 3,080.00 | $ 6,216.01 | S 9,000.00 | $ (5,920.00)] S  18,740.00 608% S 15,660.00
5789 Travel Mileage S 4,755.30 | $ 1,627.29 | $ 4,755.30 | $ 237.65 | $ 500.00 | $ 4,255.30 | $ 2,833.92 60% S (1,921.38)
5790 Utilities S 54,810.00 | $ 43,249.38 | $  50,000.00 | $ 35,788.71 | S 45,206.79 | $ 4,793.21 ] $  55,000.00 110% S 5,000.00
5795 Hockey Expenses S 2,500.00 | S 1,545.88 | $ 2,500.00 | $ 810.06 | $ 810.06 | $ 1,689.94 | S 2,250.00 90% S (250.00)
5800 Baseball Expenses S 2,500.00 | S 4,286.16 | $ 2,500.00 | $ 4,064.56 | $ 4,064.56 | $ (1,564.56)] S 2,250.00 90% S (250.00)
5805 Other Sports Expenses S 2,000.00 | S 330.82 | $ 3,000.00 | $ 157.62 | $ 300.00 | $ 2,700.00 | $ 2,000.00 67% S (1,000.00)
5810 Fitness Equipment Expenses $ 10,750.00 | $ 4,384.27 | $ 7,620.00 | $ 5,033.68 | S 5,033.68 | $ 2,586.32 | $ 6,000.00 79% S (1,620.00)
5815 Education and Training S  16,007.50 | $ 7,83858 | S 10,222.50 | $ 5,465.92 | S 5,465.92 | $ 4,756.58 | $ 1,100.00 11% S (9,122.50)
5820 Safety & PPE Equipment S 12,253.60 | $ 3,33837|$ 11,800.00 | $ 2,355.81 | S 10,000.00 | $ 1,800.00 | $ 12,300.00 104% S 500.00
5825 Board Expenses S 2,500.00 | S 1,327.90 | $ 2,500.00 | $ - S 2,500.00 | $ - S 2,500.00 100% S -
5830 Volunteer Appreciation S 1,500.00 | $ 716.55 | $ 1,500.00 | $ 832.86 | S 1,000.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 1,500.00 100% S -
5845 Insurance Claims S (23,482.23)] s (29,661.76)| S 29,661.76 | S - S -

Total Expenditures S 833,792.65| S 803,283.76 | S 852,730.23 | $ 544,902.46 | 5 724,112.02 | S 128,618.21 | $ 908,453.63 107% S 55,723.40

Capital Accessibility Paving $ 110,000.00 $ 110,000.00 $ 110,000.00

Capital Reserve $ 11,000.00 $ 11,000.00 $ 11,000.00
Total Capital Summary 2025 $ 121,000.00 $ 121,000.00 $ 121,000.00
Total Surplus $ 853,23823 S 505,515.78 S 677,438.47 S 175,799.76




LLSRC Revenue Budget Justification

January 1st, 2026 to December 31st, 2026

GL Code Definition 2026 Request Breakdown Annual Revenue Notes
4030 Indoor Room Rental S 9,500.00 LLSRC Paid Rentals (Indoors)
4035 Mobile Items Rental S 500.00 Dishes, projector, BBQ, fire pit etc.
4040 Baseball Revenue S 6,000.00 12 Teams @ $500.00/team
4070 Arena/lce Rental S 2,000.00 Ice & pad rentals (winter/summer)
4100 Hockey Revenue S 3,000.00 6 Teams @ $500.00/team
4110 Other Revenue S 250.00 Sales of items, first time revenue with no applicable codes
4120 Fitness Classes S 3,000.00 Yoga, Bootcamp, Spin Etc.
4160 Services Rendered S 500.00 Staff Time Billed, Payments on Behalf etc.
4210 Community Events S 500.00 Events with revenue
4220 Summer Camp S 7,392.00 8 Kids/week for 8 weeks @ $115.50/child
4240 Education & Training Revenue S 1,500.00 Courses held at the LLSRC which we take revenue (first aid etc.)
4420 Donations S 200.00 Community donations (IE Wilsons lost equipment revenue)
4440 Grants S 2,000.00 [ Summer Jobs Misc.
4450 Drop-In User Fees & Memberships S 115,000.00 ALL drop-in (unprogrammed) fees (Gym memberships, Skating etc..)
4460 Program Revenue S 500.00 Cooking classes, dance classes etc.
4465 Interest Earned S 150.00
S

151,992.00




LLSRC Operational Expense Justification

January 1st, 2025 to December 31st, 2025

GL Code Definition 2026 Request Breakdown Notes
5400 |Wages & Salaries S 422,636.91 |Executive Director 72,810.20 |1 Employee | PT Salary COLA (1.13% CPI Alberta 2025 July)

FT Manager of Facilities & Operations 85,862.40 |1 Employee | FT Hourly | ($41.28/hour) COLA

FT Facility Operator 54,080.00 |1 Employee | FT Hourly | ($26.008/hour) COLA

Recreation Administrator 63,211.20 |1 Employee | FT Hourly | ($30.39/hour) COLA

34,700.40 |1 Employees | PT Hourly | 25hrs/week plus vacation, training & sick coverage @ $21.42/hour plus COLA

28,188.72 |2-3 Employees | PT Hourly | 16hrs/week plus vacation, training & sick coverage @ $21.42/hour plus COLA
9,900.00 |1 Employee | FT Term W/OT for 9 hour days x 11 weeks ($20/hour)

24,975.00 |3 Employees | FT Term W/OT for 9 hours/day x 10 weeks ($18.50/hour)

PT Recreation Administrator
PT Facility Operators

Camp Coordinator

Camp Leaders x3

Custodian 18,695.04 |3-5 Employees | 21hrs/week total @ $17.12/hour COLA

ot 15,600.00 |Canada Day, Projects & Misc. Events (10 hours/week for misc. OT)

Stat Pay 14,613.95 | Average day work for each employee x 13 Stats
5420 |CPP Expense $ 23,774.08 |Executive Director 4,034.10 |5.95% of income up to a max of $4034.10

FT Manager of Facilities & Operations 4,034.10

FT Facility Operator 3,217.76

Recreation Administrator 3,761.07

PT Recreation Administrator 2,064.67

PT Facility Operators 1,677.23

Camp Coordinator 589.05

Camp Leaders x3 1,486.01

Custodian 111235

ot 928.20

Stat Pay 869.53
5430  |El Expense $ 6,931.25 | Executive Director 1,194.09 |1.64% of income up to a maximum of $1,508.47

FT Manager of Facilities & Operations 1,408.14

FT Facility Operator 886.91

Recreation Administrator 1,036.66

PT Recreation Administrator 569.09

PT Facility Operators 462.30

Camp Coordinator 162.36

Camp Leaders x3 409.59

Custodian 306.60

ot 255.84

Stat Pay 239.67
5440 | WCB Expense $ 5,460.00 5,460.00 |Based on 2025 $1300/quarter (plus 5% increase)
5464 | Payroll Processing Fees $ 2,600.00 2,600.00 [Projected Based on past costs (approx. $100/pp)
5465 |Fitness Contractor Fees $ 10,800.00 |Fall, Winter & Spring 7,500.00 |Based on $50.00/class 5 classes/week

Summer 3,300.00 [Based on $50.00/class 3 classes/week
5470 |Employee Benefits $ 54,957.63 |Extended Health 20,764.80 |FT Staff Only $1,647.34/month (5% increase)

Roam Pass x3 2,835.00 [For all FT Staff
4,000.00 |$1k PP (FT staff) with receipt
3,600.00 [FT Staff not living in subsidized housing in LL

7,200.00 [FT Staff not living in LL

Health & Wellness Allowance
Housing Allowance
Commuting Allowance

vl v ulvlonvonoosolblolvlo e o noovolvlvloweovwoosrwovorlbveornrereoevoulbeoLenennne

RRSP 16,557.83 | 6% matching for FT Staff Only
5480 _|Uniforms $ 3,000.00 3,000.00
5490 i $ 500.00 500.00 |t iums for people who volunteer their time
5610 _|Accounting & Legal $ 2,500.00 2,500.00 |Legal fees for development of waivers/contracts/signs etc.
5615 _|Advertising & Promotions $ 500.00 500.00 | Advertising
5625 |Licenses & Permits $ 4,250.00 | AEDARSA 900.00
ENTANDEM - Events 950.00
ACF 500.00
Davis Inspections (Electrical) 400.00
Vosker Cameras 600.00
AARFP Membership Organization 250.00
Parks 500.00
Misc. 150.00
5640 | Courier & Postage $ 4,000.00 4,000.00
5645 |Cleaning Supplies $ 10,050.00 |Annual Cleaning Supplies 7,500.00
Cleaning Equipment 2,000.00 [New Upright Vacuum
Dry-cleaning 550.00
5685 |Insurance $ 17,886.86 | Community Group (with equipment) 17,886.86 |All insurance rates estimated increase 10%
Volunteer
Automobile
Cyber
Board & Volunteer
Bond & Crime
5690 |Interest & Bank Charges $ 10,300.00 |Bank Account costs 100.00
Credit Card/Processing Fees 10,200.00
5700 |Office Supplies $ 23,510.00 4,000.00 |Usable supplies (paper, envelopes etc.)

500.00 |Coffee Supplies
1,800.00 |iAuditor
1,200.00 [Printer
11,000.00 |Univerus Annual Fees
744.00 [Uattend Log-In Software
4,266.00 |Mailchimp (150/m), Canva (150/y), Survey Monkey (450/y), Zoom (250/y), Google Play (3/m), Antivirus (700/y), Office Annual Subscriptions (500/y), Adobe (350/y), Geek Squad (30/m)

PRV A P



5730 | Motor Vehicle Expenses $ 2,000.00 |Maintenance $ 2,000.00 |Vehicle registration & maintenance
5735 | Gas & Propane s 12,320.00 |Propane S 11,000.00 |Cost for refilling ice resurfacer fuel tanks, arena propane tanks, BBQ propane tanks & Hot Water Tanks
Operational Fuel $ 200.00 |small power tools, blowers, etc.
Kubota Diesel S 1,120.00
5745 |Canada Day $ 10,500.00 |Pancake Breakfast $ - [ponations
Children's Entertainers $ 3,000.00 |Comedian/Magician/Face Painting
Food & Beverage $ 1,000.00
Rides S 5,000.00
Decorations/Float $ 1,500.00
5750 |Community Events & Programs B 15,750.00 |Family Day $ 250.00
Easter s 2,000.00
Colour Lake Louise $ 3,000.00
Remembrance Day $ 500.00
Halloween $ 3,000.00
Christmas s 4,000.00
NDTR $ 500.00
Low Down s 500.00
Programs H 500.00
Misc. Events s 1,500.00 |Tents
5755  |Kids Camp Expenses $ 17,300.00 |Staff Accommodations $ 8,300.00 [Any rent collected will be deducted
Supplies S 3,500.00
Excursions $ 2,000.00
Guests S 3,500.00
5760 |Repair & Maintenance - Arena B 76,403.00 |Ice Resurfacer Costs s 19,000.00 |Machine & Blades
Ice Paint & Lines $ 1,500.00
Stain ($6100 every 2 years) 2027 $ -
Rock Sealant ($7275 every 4 years) 2027 $ -
Arena Painting Exterior ($21,903 every 10 years) $ 21,903.00
Arena Beams (every 10 years) 2029 $ -
Roof Snow Removal (January) $ 22,000.00
Professional Board Cleaning $ 1,000.00
Dressing Room 1 Window Activation $ 3,500.00
Dressing Room Maintenance $ 2,500.00 |Repair Paint, etc.
Exterior Maintenance $ 1,000.00
Miscellaneous Expenses $ 4,000.00 | Damages, frozen pipes, Oly Room heat etc.
5765  |Repair & Maintenance - Facility s 49,070.00 |Outhouse Maintenance & Rentals $ 3,700.00 |Event/emergency outhouse rental & bi-weekly emptying ($450 for 2 weeks)
Main Building Exterior Staining ($7075 every 2 years) 2027 $ -
Horseshoes, Slacklines, Dugouts, Benches/Bleachers Staining & Painting (every year) $ 3,700.00
Donor Sign, Welcome Hut, Library ($550 every 2 years) 2027 $ -
3 Small Shed Painting/Staining ($1100 every 3 years) 2028 $ 2,000.00
2 Gazebo Staining ($1250 every 2 years) 2027 $ 525.00
Main Building Deck (every year) - included with annual dugouts $ 5,045.00
Exterior Shop & Main Building Painting (every 10 years) 2032 $ -
Pest control $ 1,800.00
Line Marking Materials/Supplies $ 700.00 [Paint & roller
Main Entrance & CHall Plugs $ 500.00
Damage Deck Board & Plug Covers H 750.00
Hanging Baskets $ 1,500.00
Landscaping H 3,500.00 [Seed, fertilizer, soil, & sand
Dumping $ 1,000.00
Signage S 750.00 |Please report damages, home/away
Rugs/Carpets $ 500.00
Shale (every 3 years) H 7,500.00
Arena Entrance Door Replacement $ 6,000.00
Main Entrance Garbage s 1,600.00
Ice Melt $ 1,500.00
General Maintenance $ 6,500.00 [Repairs within the facility including trades needed (plumbers etc.)
5770 |Repair & Maintenance - Equipment $ 4,500.00 |Kubota Maintenance $ 500.00
Rascal Groomer Tines S 500.00
Ranger Maintenance $ 500.00
General Tool S 3,000.00
5775 _|Shop Tools & Supplies $ 4,000.00 supplies $ 4,000.00
5780 |Communications $ 6,180.00 [Main Phone S 1,380.00
Starlink Internet $ 3,000.00
Mobile x2 S 1,800.00
5784 | Travel Meals $ 300.00 [Meeting Meals $ 300.00 |Based on .5 meeting/month @ $50.00 each
Training Meals $ - |Based on $20.00/breakfast, $25.00/lunch, $40.00/dinner ($85.00/full day), 10 days of training
5785 |Staff Housing Expenses $ 18,740.00 |Housing Rent $ 7,800.00 |Less revenue
Housing CAM Charges $ 7,000.00
Housing Utilities $ 2,800.00 [2/3 of $350/month
Internet $ 1,140.00
5789 |Travel Mileage $ 2,833.92 |Travel & Hosting $ 2,833.92 [Based on $.72/km for necessary travel (Banff & Canmore meetings etc. 2x/month)
5790 | Utilities $ 55,000.00 s 55,000.00 | EPCOR Bills
5795 |Hockey Expenses $ 2,250.00 |Supplies $ 750.00
League Costs $ 1,500.00
5800 |Baseball Expenses $ 2,250.00 |Supplies $ 750.00
League Costs $ 1,500.00
5805 | Other Sports Expenses $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 [Outdoor games bin, new equipment, trophies etc.
5810 |Fitness Equipment Expenses B 6,000.00 |Annual Maintenance $ 2,500.00




Fitness Centre Equipment $ 3,500.00 |Misc. Equipment
5815  |Education and Training $ 1,100.00 |Camp Staff Training $ 500.00
Executive Director $ -
Recreation Administrator S 500.00 [Excel
FT Manager of Facilities & Operations $ 100.00 |Lift Operator Training
FT Facility Operator $ -
Accommodation s .
5820 |Safety & PPE Equipment $ 12,300.00 | Alarm/Safety Checks $ 2,000.00 [Smoke alarms, CO alarms, sensors etc.
First Aid Supplies $ 800.00
5 Cameras (Rink, Hallway, Gym, Mech Room B Interior, Outside) $ 2,500.00
Safety Signs $ 1,500.00 [Hardware
PPE $ 2,500.00
Fire First Aid & $ 3,000.00 [Annual Check, replacement parts etc.
5825 |Board Expenses $ 2,500.00 [Board & Staff Holiday Dinner s 2,500.00 [$100.00/person
5830 |Staff/Volunteer Appreciation $ 1,500.00 $ 750.00 [Summer Staff BBQ/Dinner (post camp)
s 750.00 |Winter Rec Staff Dinner (post ice season)
$  908453.63 $ 908,453.63




LLSRC Capital Expense Justification

January 1st, 2025 to December 31st, 2025

GL Code Definition 2026 Projection 2027 Projection Notes

Paving for accessibility 50,000.00

Roof Replacement/Shingles 50,000.00
End of 15 year asset life. Equipped with our new snow pusher and a 72 inch snow blower

| ideal it.

Kubota LX3520 OR Electric Tractor would k?e an |deaf s.etup.for a!lvt.he snow we move around and the amount of it. Our curre.nt
tractor is at the limit of its abilities to move snow with the snow pusher we have. Also, this
machine could be shared with the Fire Hall for snow removal at the new hall location

70,000.00
Capital Reserve S 11,000.00
170,000.00 $ 11,000.00




Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council

September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

MINUTES OF THE
SUPPLEMENTARY PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPOSED BYLAW 490, THE BANFF
COMMUNITY PLAN, AND REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
of the Town of Banff in the Province of Alberta
Monday, September 08, 2025, at 2:00 p.m.

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT

Corrie DiManno
Hugh Pettigrew
Ted Christensen
Grant Canning
Chip Olver
Barb Pelham
Kaylee Ram

Mayor

Councillor and Deputy Mayor

Councillor and Acting Mayor

Councillor

Councillor (Remote Participation)
Councillor

Councillor

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT

None

ADMINISTRATION PRESENT

Kelly Gibson
Lauren Aebig
Jason Darrah
Darren Enns
Adrian Field
Alison Gerrits
Barbara King
Chris Marvell
Katherine Severson
Michael Hay

Dave Michaels
Chris McGregor
Randall McKay
Sarah Cowan
Renée Lavergne
Lisa Lee

Carolynn Grey
Libbey McDougall

Town Manager

Director, Corporate Services

Director, Communications & Marketing
Director, Planning & Environment
Director, Engineering

Director, Community Services

Ditrector, Human Resources

Acting Director, Operations

Director, Emergency & Protective Services
Manager, Environmental Services
Manager, Planning Services

Manager, Fleet Services

Manager, Strategic Initiatives+ Special Projects
Emergency Management Coordinator
Information Governance Coordinator
Executive Assistant, Office of the Mayor
Legislative Advisor

Municipal Clerk

(Remote Participation)
(Remote Participation)
(Remote Participation)

(Partial Remote Participation)
(Partial Remote Participation)

(Remote Participation)
(Remote Participation)
(Remote Participation)
(Remote Participation)

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 1 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

1.0

2.0

CALL TO ORDER

Present in the Council Chamber: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen,
Councillor Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

Present Virtually: (1): Councillor Olver
Mayor DiManno called the September 08, 2025, Supplementary Public Hearing for Proposed Bylaw
490, the Banff Community Plan, and Regular Meeting of Council to order at 2:00 p.m. and Councillor

Ram provided a land acknowledgment.

CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA

2.1 Revised Agenda for the September 08, 2025 Supplementary Public Hearing for Proposed
Bylaw 490, the Banff Community Plan, and Regular Meeting of Council

COU25-320 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That the Revised Agenda for the September 08, 2025, Supplementary Public Hearing for Proposed
Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan, and Regular Meeting of Council be amended by adding the
following Written Submissions to Section 4.3, Written Submissions, for the Supplementary Public
Hearing for Proposed Bylaw 490, the Banff Community Plan:

e Item 4.3.0, Leslie Taylor: Letter Dated September 06, 2025; and

o Item 4.3.7, Mike Kelly, Executive Director, Banff & Lake Louise Hospitality Association: Letter
Received September 07, 2025

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-321 Moved by Councillor Pelham

That the Revised Agenda for the September 08, 2025 Supplementary Public Hearing for Proposed
Bylaw 490, the Banff Community Plan, and Regular Meeting of Council be confirmed, as amended
by Motion COU25-320.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 2 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

2.2 2025 Council Workplan

Council, by unanimous consent, received the 2025 Council Workplan for the Corporate Record.

3.0 CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MINUTES

3.1 Minutes of the August 11, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council

COU25-322 Moved by Councillor Pelham
That the Minutes of the August 11, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council be confirmed.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

4.0 SUPPLEMENTARY PUBLIC HEARING FOR BYLAW 490, THE BANFF COMMUNITY
PLAN

A Public Hearing was held on Bylaw 490, being a bylaw of the Town of Banf to adopt the Banff
Community Plan.

4.1 Opening of Public Hearing and Confirmation of Hearing Process

The Municipal Clerk confirmed that all legislated requirements were met to hold a supplementary
Public Hearing on Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan.

COU25-323 Moved by Mayor DiManno
That Council open the Public Hearing for Proposed Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

Mayor DiManno opened the Public Hearing for Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan, at 2:04 p.m.

4.2 Administrative Public Hearing Report: Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 3 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

Randall McKay, Manager, Strategic Initiatives + Special Projects, presented Bylaw 490, The Banff
Community Plan, as amended.

4.3 Written Submissions

The following Written Submissions were received by Council with respect to the Supplemental Public
Hearing for Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan:

4.3.1 Ellen Brenner: Email, Received August 12, 2025

4.3.2 Ronald LeBlanc: Email, Received August 26, 2025

4.3.3 Bow Valley Naturalist: Letter, Received September 04, 2025
4.3.4 Harvey Locke: Letter, Received September 05, 2025

4.3.5 Peter . Poole, President, Arctos & Bird Management Ltd.: Letter, Received September
05, 2025

Note: The following Written Submissions were included as part of the Public Hearing for Proposed
Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan, by way of adopted motions COU25-320 and COU25-321.

4.3.6  Leslie Taylor: Letter, Dated September 06, 2025

437 Mike Kelly: Executive Director, Banff & Lake Louise Hospitality Association, Letter,
Received September 07, 2025

4.4 Verbal Submissions

The following Verbal Submissions were received by Council with respect to the Supplemental Public
Hearing for Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan:

4.4.1 Harvey Locke
4.42  Peter J. Poole, President, Arctos & Bird Management Ltd.

Council, by way of unanimous consent and pursuant to section 11.4 of Procedures Bylaw 44-8,
extended Mr. Poole’s verbal presentation time from five minutes to ten minutes.

Mr. Poole submitted a copy of his speaking notes which were included as part of the Corporate Record
for this Public Hearing and published in the Final Revised Agenda.

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 4 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

443 Leslie Taylor

4.44  Mike Kelly, Executive Director, Banff & Lake Louise Hospitality Association

4.4.5 Stavros Karlos
Mayor DiManno asked if there was anyone else present who wished to speak to Bylaw 490, The Banff
Community Plan. The following speakers came forward and provided Verbal Submissions that were
received by Council with respect to the Supplemental Public Hearing for Bylaw 490, The Banff
Community Plan:

4.4.6  David Matys, Vice President Destination Development, Banff & Lake Louise Tourism

4477 Mark Walker

4.4.8 Chris MacDonald

The Municipal Clerk confirmed that no additional written submissions had been received over the
course of the Supplementary Public Hearing.

Mayor DiManno asked for a third and final time if there was anyone else present who wished to speak
to Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan. No additional speakers came forward.

4.5 Council Questions

No additional questions of Administration were asked in relation to Bylaw 490, The Banff Community
Plan.

4.6 Closing Comments from Administration

No closing comments were provided by Administration.

4.7 Closing of Public Hearing

COU25-324 Moved by Mayor DiManno

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 5 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

That Council close the Supplemental Public Hearing for Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan.
For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

Mayor DiManno declared the Supplemental Public Hearing for Bylaw 490, The Banff Community
Plan, closed at 3:51 p.m.

Council, by unanimous consent, recessed the meeting at 3:51 p.m. for a twenty minute break.
Council reconvened the meeting at 4:13 p.m. with Mayor DiManno in the Chair.
4.8 Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan — Second and Third Readings

COU25-325 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That Bylaw 490 be further amended as follows:

e In the header for Section 3.0 by including the word “SCHEDULE” so that the header reads as
follows:

3.0 SCHEDULE

e In Section 4.0, Enactment and Transition, by deleting Subsections 4.1, 4.2, and 4.3 in their entirety
and substituting with the following:

4.1 This Bylaw comes into force:

a) When it receives third reading and is signed by the Mayor and the Town Manager
or designates; and

b) Following Subsection a), upon approval and execution by the Minister of Canadian
Identity and Culture and Minister responsible for Official Languages, or their
delegate.

4.2 Bylaw 266, the Banff Community Plan, is hereby repealed upon this bylaw coming
into force.

e In Schedule A, The Banff Community Plan, Section 5.7.0 Public Realm Approach, page 39 of 59,
by deleting the third bullet point in the first column in its entirety;

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 6 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

e In Schedule A, The Banff Community Plan, Section 4.1, Nature Positive and Climate Action, page
16 of 59, second sentence of the second paragraph in the first column:

a) by deleting the words “It also requires” preceding the words “a commitment to nature
positive,” and substituting with the words “This principle points to”; and

b) by deleting the word “regeneration” following the words ““ — are being repaired and” and
substituting with the word “regenerated”

so that this sentence reads as follows (emphasis added):

The principle of NNNEI requires the strategic management of cumulative effects to ensure
the community does not impact the ecological integrity of the national park. This principle
points to a commitment to nature positive, which means that nature — and natural processes,
species and ecosystems — are being repaired and regenerated rather than being in decline.”

e In Schedule A, The Banff Community Plan, Section 4.3.4, Responsible Municipal Stewardship,
page 25 of 59, by deleing the fourth bullet in the first column in its entirety.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-326 Moved by Councillor Pelham

That Bylaw 490, Schedule A be further amended, where appropriate, by Amending all instances of
inconsistent references such as:

e “the plan,” “the Plan,” “The Banff Community Plan,” and “the Community Plan,” along with any
other variations, to uniformly read as “Banff Community Plan.”; and

e '"thedraftplan," "the Draft Plan," "The Draft Banff Community Plan," and "the Draft Community
Plan," along with any other variations, to uniformly read as "Draft Banff Community Plan."

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED
COU25-327 Moved by Councillor Olver

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Section 4.5.2, fourth paragraph, page 28 of 59, by adding the
following new bullet point:

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 7 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

e [Explore the concept of limiting access, or discouraging access, to vehicles when the town is at

capacity

For: (3): Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, and Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (3): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, and Councillor Pelham
Absent: (1): Councillor Ram
MOTION DEEFEATED ON A TIE

COU25-328 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, by replacing references to the future growth of
visitation with references to the future growth of demand, as follows:

e In Section 1.3, page 9 of 59, first sentence of the second paragraph of page 9, fourth paragraph of
the section, by adding the word “demand” following the words “Visitation to the town of Banff
and Banff National Park is thriving and” so that this first sentence reads as follows (emphasis
added):

Visitation to the town of Banff and Banff National Park is thriving and demand
continues to grow.

e Section 4.3, second paragraph, page 22 of 59, by adding the word “demand” following the words
“Tourism is the primary economic driver in Banff and” so that this paragraph reads as follows
(emphasis added):

Tourism is the primary economic driver in Banff and demand is expected to continue
to grow, which means we are guided by our belief that when done right, it can be an
impactful regenerative vehicle for a better tomorrow — for people and for the park.

e Appendix D, page 53 of 59, in the last sentence of the last paragraph entitled “REGIONAL
GROWTH TRENDS”, by adding the words “the demand for” following the words “The impacts
of regional population growth are expected to continue to have a dramatic impact upon” so that
this last sentence reads as follows (emphasis added):

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 8 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

The impacts of regional population growth are expected to continue to have a dramatic
impact upon the demand for tourism and visitation in Banff in the coming decades.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor

Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-329  Moved by Councillor Olver

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Section 1.3, page 9 of 59, by deleting the second
paragraph of this page, fourth paragraph of the Section, in its entirety and substituting with the
following two paragraphs:

Visitation to the town of Banff and Banff National Park is thriving and demand
continues to grow. While this growth has provided a strong economic base for the
community, residents are feeling the strain of growth and associated socioeconomic
and environmental outcomes. Challenges with meeting basic needs, like safe and
affordable housing, food supply, access to health care, child care and other essential
services and goods, is eclipsing the ability of residents to prioritize broader community
considerations such as climate change, environmental stewardship and human-wildlife
coexistence.

The steady visitor growth is not only creating impacts that affect the quality of life of
residents, but also visitor experience, and our natural environment.

For: (4): Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, and Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (3): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Pelham, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED
COU25-330 Amendment Moved by Councillor Christensen

That the motion COU25-332 be amended by:

e deleting the words “Be a” preceding the words “global environmental” and substituting with the
words “To follow”; and

e deleting the word “leader” following the words “global environmental” and substituting with the
word “leaders”

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 9 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

so that the motion reads as follows (emphasis added):

Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Section 4.1.1, page 17 of 59, by deleting the second
bullet point in its entirety and substituting with the following:

e To follow global environmental leaders and model of exemplary environmental
stewardship.

Against: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver,
Councillor Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION DEFEATED

COU25-331 Amendment Moved by Councillor Christensen

That the motion COU25-332 be amended by deleting the word “Be” preceding the words “a global
environmental” and substitute with the words “Strive to be” so that the proposed new bullet point
reads as follows (emphasis added):

e Strive to be a global environmental leader and model of exemplary environmental
stewardship.

For: (2): Councillor Christensen and Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, and
Councillor Ram

MOTION DEFEATED

COU25-332 Moved by Councillor Ram

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Section 4.1.1, page 17 of 59, by deleting the second
bullet point in its entirety and substituting with the following:

e Be a global environmental leader and model of exemplary environmental stewardship.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
Against: (1): Councillor Christensen

MOTION CARRIED

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 10 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

COU25-333 Moved by Councillor Ram

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Section 4.1.2, page 17 of 59, by deleting the third
bullet point in its entirety and substituting with the following:

e Work with partners to monitor and preserve the security and connectivity of habitat
in wildlife corridors.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-334 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That Council, pursuant to section 5.1 of Procedures Bylaw 44-8, suspend section 7.10, to allow the
meeting to extend past 6:00 p.m. so that Council may complete the following items prior to adjourning
the September 08, 2025 Regular Meeting of Council:

e Item 4.8, Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan — Second Reading, as amended
e Items 10.1 through 10.5, Committee Reports

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
Against: (1): Councillor Christensen

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-335 Moved by Councillor Olver

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Section 4.2, page 20 of 59, by deleting the last
sentence of the first paragraph in its entirety and substituting with the following two sentences:

While our housing options continue to be limited, there has been a long-standing
community wide recognition that appropriate housing is a benefit to our entire
community. Everyone should have a quality place to call home.

so that this paragraph reads as follows (emphasis added):
Housing is the foundation on which we build our lives, engage in society, and
contribute to the economic wellbeing of our community. When people have the

housing they need, they have better health, education, and employment outcomes.
While our housing options continue to be limited, there has been a long-

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 11 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

standing community wide recognition that appropriate housing is a benefit to
our entire community. Everyone should have a quality place to call home.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-336  Amendment Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That motion COU25-337 be amended by deleting the following words found after the first bullet
point:

; and
e adding the word “, events,” following the words “in unique experiences”

For: (2): Councillor Christensen and Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, and
Councillor Ram

MOTION DEFEATED

COU25-337 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, in Section 4.3.3, page 24 of 59, second bullet point,
by:

e Deleting the first word of the bullet point “Invest” preceding the words: “in unique
experiences” and substituting with the words “Facilitate, support, and invest”; and
e Adding the word “, events,” following the words “in unique experiences”

so that this second bullet point reads as follows (emphasis added):

e Facilitate, support, and invest in unique experiences, events, and infrastructure
to attract visitors during non-peak seasons.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 12 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

COU25-338 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, as follows:

e Section 4.3.2, page 24 of 59, by deleting the fourth bullet in its entirety; and

e By including the following above referenced deleted bullet point from Section 4.3.2 as a new bullet
point to Section 4.3.3, page 24 of 59:

e Support initiatives that promote locally sourced products and services, enhancing
the community’s economic resilience.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED
COU25-339  Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, as follows:

e Section 4.3.3, page 24 of 59, by deleting the fifth, sixth, and seventh bullet points in their entirety;
and

e By including the following above referenced deleted bullet points from Section 4.3.3 as new bullet
points to Section 4.3.2, page 24 of 59:

e Work with Parks Canada in managing types and levels of appropriate visitor
services within the community.

e Collaborate with partners to develop a comprehensive Human Use Management
framework and strategy for the Town of Banff that prioritizes high-quality visitor
experiences while maintaining and enhancing the quality of life for residents.

e Investigate the feasibility of establishing a destination stewardship council focused
on regional human use management within the Bow Valley.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-340 Moved by Mayor DiManno

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 13 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, in Section 5.1.1, page 33 of 59, third paragraph,
by:

e deleting the words “relevant federal agencies” following the words “work collaboratively with”
and substituting “Parks Canada”; and

e deleting the words “legislative amendments” following the words “to explore potential” and
substituting “processes”’

so that the paragraph reads as follows:
The Town will work collaboratively with Parks Canada to explore potential
processes that would allow for the reassessment and possible reconfiguration,
resurvey or rezoning of designated parcels of land, provided that:

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor

Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

Against: (1): Councillor Christensen
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-341 Moved by Councillor Olver

That Council, pursuant to Section 9.23 of Procedures Bylaw 44-8, revisit Motion COU25-286,
defeated during the August 11, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
Against: (1): Councillor Canning
MOTION CARRIED
COU25-342 Amendment Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That motion COU25-343 be amended by:

e Deleting the word “prescriptive” following the words “back to Administration so that”; and

e Deleting the words “that would confirm boundaries and limits while also considering the
commercial cap, housing density, and daily visitor limits, if so required,”

so that it reads as follows:

That Bylaw 490, as amended, be referred back to Administration so that definitions of
capacity and overtourism are included.

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 14 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-343 Moved, as amended by COU25-342, by Councillor Olver

That Bylaw 490, as amended, be referred back to Administration so that definitions of capacity and
overtourism are included.

For: (3): Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, and Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (4): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Pelham, and Councillor Ram
MOTION DEFEATED

COU25-344 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That Bylaw 490, as amended, be referred back to Administration so that a definition of overcrowding

can be added to Schedule A, Appendix A. GLOSSARY OF TERMS, in the appropriate alphabetical
order.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

Councillor Christensen left the meeting at 6:35 p.m.

COU25-345 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, The Banff Community Plan, Section 4.5.1 Goals,
fifth bullet, on page 27 of 59, by deleting the words “at key visitor attractions” following the words
“and community livability by mitigating congestion” so that the bullet point reads as follows:

e Optimize visitor experiences and community livability by mitigating congestion.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-346 Amendment, Moved by Councillor Olver

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 15 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

That motion COU25-347 be amended to add the words “such as passenger rail connections,
expanding bus service, and other options,” following the words “mass transit services”.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED
COU25-347 Moved, as amended by COU25-346, by Councillor Pettigrew

That Bylaw 490 be amended in Schedule A, The Banff Community Plan, 4.5.4 Public Transit, second
bullet point, on page 28 of 59, by:

e Deleting the words “passenger rail connection and expanded bus services” following the words
“Work with partners in continuing to advocate for” and substitute with the words “mass transit
services” ; and

e Adding the words “such as passenger rail connections, expanding bus service, and other
options,” following the words “mass transit services”

so that the bullet point reads as follows (emphasis added):

e Work with partners in continuing to advocate for mass transit services, such as
passenger rail connections, expanding bus service, and other options,
linking the Calgary area with Bow Valley destinations, including Canmore, Banff,
and Lake Louise.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-348 Moved by Councillor Pelham

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Section 5.1.1, page 32 of 59, first paragraph, by
deleting the words “no net negative environmental impacts” following the words “provide a strategy
for the management of growth consistent with principles of”” and substituting with “No Net Negative
Environmental Impacts” so that the paragraph reads as follows (emphasis added):

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 16 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

The Canada National Parks Act (CNPA) requires that community plans for National
Park communities provide a strategy for the management of growth consistent with
principles of No Net Negative Environmental Impact, responsible environmental
stewardship and heritage conservation.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED
COU25-349  Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Section 5.1.1, page 33 of 59, last paragraph, by adding the
following new criteria:

d.  No proposed change increases the area of any of the commercial zones (CA,
CB, CD, CR, CS§, CT) in the town.

e.  No proposed change decreases to the total area of residentially zoned land in
the town.

For: (1): Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Ram

MOTION DEFEATED

COU25-350 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, in Section 5.4.1, page 36 of 59, fourth bullet point
by deleting the words “adapt to evolving consumer needs” following the words “Support an
environment where the overall retail offering can” and substituting with the words “achieve an
appropriate balance in terms of serving Banff’s resident and visitor”, so that the bullet point reads as
follows (emphasis added):

e Support an environment where the overall retail offering can achieve an
appropriate balance in terms of serving Banff’s resident and visitor needs
and expectations by working with partners to enable a diverse and vibrant market
responsive commercial landscape.

For: (1): Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, and
Councillor Ram

MOTION DEFEATED

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 17 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

COU25-351 Moved by Councillor Olver

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, in Section 5.4.1, page 36 of 59, by deleting the
final bullet point in its entirety and substituting with the following:

Work collaboratively with Parks Canada, community partners and stakeholders to
target sustainable visitation levels, taking into consideration the qualitative aspects of
the national park experience within the townsite, and quantitative aspects such as
infrastructure capacities including road capacity, housing need, health and emergency
services.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-352 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, as follows:

e Page 2 of 59, “Contents”, by deleting the title of Part 6. “MEASURING IMPACTS AND
OUTCOMES” and substituting with the title “MONITORING AND IMPLEMENTATION?;
and

e Page 40 of 59, by deleting the page title “PART.6 MEASURING IMPACT AND OUTCOMES”
and substituting with the page title “PART.60 MONITORING AND IMPLEMENTATION”.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-353 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Section 6.1.0, page 40 of 59, by adding the
following new bullet point:

e Work with other entities to achieve the outcomes of this Community Plan.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-354 Moved by Councillor Olver

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 18 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Appendix A, in the definition pf Nature Positive,
page 47 of 59, by adding following the sentence, which is also noted in the second paragraph of Section
4.1:

Nature positive in the Banff Community Plan means that nature — and natural
processes, species and ecosystems — are being repaired and regenerated rather than
being in decline.

so that the definition of Nature Positive reads as follows (emphasis added):

A global societal goal to halt and reverse nature loss by 2030 on a 2020 baseline, and
achieve full recovery by 2050, in line with the mission of the Kunming-Montreal
Global Biodiversity Framework. The Kunming-Montreal Global Biodiversity
Framework (GBF) is an international agreement adopted in 2022 to guide global
efforts to protect and restore biodiversity by 2030. Nature positive in The Banff
Community Plan means that nature — and natural processes, species and
ecosystems — are being repaired and regenerated rather than being in decline.

For: (5): Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and
Councillor Ram
Against: (1): Mayor DiManno

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-355 Moved by Councillor Olver

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Appendix A, in the definition of Regenerative
Tourism, page 47 of 59, by the sentence “Regenerative tourism can be viewed as the opposite of
overtourism as visitors have positive impacts instead of negative impacts.” to the end of this definition,
so that it reads as follows (emphasis added):

By "regenerative", and "regenerative tourism", we are referencing the idea that tourism
can be a part of leaving the place better than it is now. It means positively adding to
the natural, social, cultural, and economic resources of a place. Regenerative tourism
can be viewed as the opposite of overtourism as visitors have positive impacts
instead of negative impacts.

For: (1): Councillor Olver
Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and
Councillor Ram

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 19 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

MOTION DEFEATED

Note: Second Reading of Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan was originally moved as part of the
August 11, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council during Item 7.1, Bylaw Tabulation: Bylaw 490, The
Banff Community Plan — Second Reading.

COU25-356 Moved by Councillor Olver

That with respect to Item 4.8, Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan — Second and Third Readings, the
following be adopted, as amended:

That second reading be given to Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan, as amended by Motions
COU25-260 to COU25-303 and COU25-325 to COU25-355.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-357 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That a Special Meeting of Council be scheduled for Tuesday, September 16, 2025, to commence at
1:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber, Banff Town Hall, for the purpose of considering third reading of
Bylaw 490, the Banff Community Plan, as amended on August 11, 2025, and September 08, 2025 , as
well as the remainder of the Agenda for September 08, 2025 (Items 8.1 through 8.4 and Item 9.1).

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor

Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

5.0 INVITED PRESENTATIONS

No Invited Presentations were scheduled as part of this meeting.

6.0 PUBLIC INPUT ON APPROVED AGENDA ITEMS SCHEDULED AS PART OF THE
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 20 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

6.1 Written Submissions

No Written Submissions for Approved Agenda Items were received for this meeting.

6.2 Verbal Submissions

No requests to provide Verbal Submissions to Approved Agenda Items were received for this meeting.

7.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS
No items of Unfinished Business were scheduled as part of this meeting.

Note: Items listed in Section 8.0, Administrative Support, were postponed to the September 16, 2025, Special
Meeting of Council by way of Motion COU25-357.

8.0 ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS

8.1 Verbal Briefing: Housing Development

8.2 Request for Decision: Rescheduling of the November 12, 2025, Regular Meetings of the
Governance and Finance Committee and Council

8.3 Request for Decision: Proposed Public Input Policy C1014

8.4 Request for Decision: Proposed Council Policy C6000-01 Green Fleet

Note: The Item listed in Section 9.0, Notice of Motion, was postponed to the September 16, 2025, Special
Meeting of Council by way of Motion COU25-357.

9.0 NOTICE OF MOTION

9.1 Motion: Correspondence Received as part of the July 14, 2025 Regular Meeting of Council Re:

Motion to Issue Annual Written Warning Prior to Parking Violation Ticket for Resident Permit
Renewal

Councillor Ted Christensen

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 21 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

10.0 COMMITTEE REPORTS

Council, by unanimous consent, received the following Committee Reports for the Corporate Record:

10.1  Confirmed Minutes of the May 14, 2025 Regular Meeting of the Bow Valley Regional Transit
Services Commission

10.2  Confirmed Minutes of the May 15, 2025 Regular Meeting of the Banff Heritage Corporation

10.3  Confirmed Minutes of the May 15, 2025, Regular Meeting of the Bow Valley Regional Housing
Board, the August 2025 Occupancy and Waitlist Report, and the August 2025 Monthly

Bulletin

10.4  Confirmed Minutes of the June 11. 2025 Regular Meeting of the Municipal Plannin
Commission

10.5  Decision of the July 24, 2025 Banff Development Appeal Board Hearing

11.0 NEW/URGENT BUSINESS

No items of New/ Utrgent Business wete included as part of this meeting

12.0 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

No Confidential Items were scheduled as part of this meeting.

13.0 CORRESPONDENCE

No items of Correspondence were received for this meeting.

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 22 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 08, 2025 Corrected Confirmed September 29, 2025

14.0 ADJOURNMENT
COU25-358 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That the September 08, 2025, Supplementary Public Hearing for Proposed Bylaw 490, the Banff
Community Plan, and Regular Meeting of Council adjourn at 7:16 p.m.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED
On Original On Original
Corrie DiManno Libbey McDougall
Mayor Municipal Clerk
Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 23 of 23



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council

September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

MINUTES OF THE
SPECIAL MEETING OF COUNCIL
of the Town of Banff in the Province of Alberta
Monday, September 16, 2025, at 1:00 p.m.

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT

Corrie DiManno
Hugh Pettigrew
Ted Christensen

Mayor
Councillor and Deputy Mayor
Councillor and Acting Mayor

Grant Canning Councillor
Chip Olver Councillor
Barb Pelham Councillor
Kaylee Ram Councillor

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT

None

ADMINISTRATION PRESENT

Kelly Gibson
Lauren Aebig
Jason Darrah
Darren Enns

Town Manager

Director, Corporate Services

Director, Communications & Marketing
Director, Planning & Environment

(Partial Remote Participation)

Adrian Field Director, Engineering (Remote Participation)
Alison Gerrits Director, Community Services

Paul Godfrey Director, Operations

Barbara King Director, Human Resources (Remote Participation)
Katherine Severson Director, Emergency & Protective Services

Michael Hay Manager, Environmental Services (Partial Remote Participation)
Dave Michaels Manager, Planning Services

Chris McGregor Manager, Fleet Services

Randall McKay Manager, Strategic Initiatives+ Special Projects

Renée Lavergne Information Governance Coordinator (Remote Participation)
Lisa Lee Executive Assistant, Office of the Mayor (Remote Participation)
Carolynn Grey Legislative Advisor (Remote Participation)
Libbey McDougall Municipal Clerk

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 1 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

1.0

2.0

CALL TO ORDER

Present: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver,
Councillor Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

Mayor DiManno called the September 16, 2025, Special Meeting of Council to order at 1:00 p.m.
and provided a land acknowledgment.

CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA

2.1 Agenda for the September 16, 2025 Special Meeting of Council

COU25-359 Moved by Mayor DiManno

3.0

That the Agenda for the September 16, 2025 Special Meeting of Council be confirmed.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

SPECIAL MEETING BUSINESS

3.1 Bylaw Tabulation: Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan, Third Reading, As Amended

Moved by Mayor DiManno

That third reading be given to Bylaw 490, the Bantf Community Plan.

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 2 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

COU25-360 Moved by Councillor Olver

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Part 6. Monitoring and Implementation, page 40
of 59, first sentence of the fourth paragraph, by deleting the acronym “MGA” following the words
“in Town Council through the Incorporation Agreement and” and substituting with the title
“Municipal Government Acf’ so that this paragraph reads as follows (emphasis added):

The plan recognizes the legislative mandate and discretionary power vested in Town
Council through the Incorporation Agreement and Municipal Government Act.
The attainment of the goals in the plan is therefore subject to budgetary or resource
constraints and Council’s discretion.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-361 Moved by Councillor Olver

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Part 1, page 7 of 59, third paragraph, by inserting
the words “More details on this are provided in Appendix D. National Parks Planning Context.”
immediately following the words “Parks Canada is required to approve the plan and all amendments.”
So that the paragraph reads as follows (emphasis added):

The plan is the principal long-range planning instrument for the municipality.
It is a statement of the goals, policy objectives and planning philosophy for the
community’s future. The Incorporation Agreement also specifies that the plan
must conform with the key strategies and objectives of the Banff National Park
of Canada Management Plan. The minister responsible for Parks Canada is
required to approve the plan and all amendments. More details on this are
provided in Appendix D. National Parks Planning Context.

For: (6): Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham,
Councillor Pettigrew and Councillor Ram

Against: (1): Mayor DiManno

MOTION CARRIED

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 3 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

COU25-362 Moved by Councillor Olver

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Part 1, page 7 of 59, fourth paragraph, by inserting
the words “and be” immediately following the words “the Banff National Park Management Plan” so
that the paragraph reads as follows (emphasis added):

The Incorporation Agreement also specifies that all plans and bylaws must
conform with the Banff National Park Management Plan and be approved by
the minister responsible for Parks Canada.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-363 Moved by Councillor Christensen

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Part 1, page 6, paragraph 2, by deleting the words
“two-year” following the words “a wide range of stakeholders through a” and substituting with the
words “three-year” so the paragraph reads (emphasis added):

Development of the plan was led by the Town of Banff and represents the
cumulative efforts and extensive contributions by an advisory committee and
a wide range of stakeholders through a three-year engagement process.

For: (2): Councillor Christensen and Councillor Pettigrew

Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham and
Councillor Ram

MOTION DEFEATED
COU25-364 Moved by Councillor Christensen
That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, page 10, second sentence of the second paragraph

by deleting the word “steward” following the words “Travel and tourism will transcend its traditional

role, evolving into a” and substituting with the word “stewardship” so the sentence reads (emphasis
added):

Travel and tourism will transcend its traditional role, evolving into a
stewardship of global resilience, equity, prosperity and cultural tolerance.

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 4 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

For: (4): Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, and Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (3): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Pelham, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-365 Moved by Councillor Olver
That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Part 1, page 7 of 59, fourth paragraph, by deleting
the words “and be approved by the minister responsible for Parks Canada” immediately following the

words “the Banff National Park Management Plan” so that the paragraph reads as follows:

The Incorporation Agreement also specifies that all plans and bylaws must
conform with the Banff National Park Management Plan.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

Council, by unanimous consent, recessed at 1:35 pm for a ten minute break.

Council reconvened at 1:49 p.m. with Mayor DiManno in the Chair.

Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Part 4.5 Moving People Sustainable, by adding the
following new paragraph following the second paragraph on page 27 of 59:

Recognize that authority over roads rests with the Minister responsible for
Parks Canada under the Incorporation Agreement and may be delegated to the
Parks Superintendent, enabling collaborative approaches to traffic
management, pedestrianization, and enforcement.

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 5 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

COU25-366 Amendment to Motion COU25-368 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That the motion be amended by deleting the words “to traffic management, pedestrianization,
and enforcement” following the words “enabling collaborative approaches.”

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-367 Amendment to Motion COU25-368 Moved by Councillor Olver

That the motion be further amended by adding the following sentence to the end of the proposed
paragraph:

Any changes to the management of roads would be a complex process
involving federal, provincial and municipal government as well as multiple
federal and provincial departments.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, Councillor
Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
Against: (1): Councillor Christensen

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-368 Moved, as amended by Motions COU25-366 and COU25-367, by Councillor Pettigrew,

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Part 4.5 Moving People Sustainable, by adding the
following new paragraph following the second paragraph on page 27 of 59:

Recognize that authority over roads rests with the Minister responsible for
Parks Canada under the Incorporation Agreement and may be delegated to the
Parks Superintendent, enabling collaborative. Any changes to the
management of roads would be a complex process involving federal,
provincial and municipal government as well as multiple federal and
provincial departments.

For: (2): Councillor Christensen and Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, and
Councillor Ram

MOTION DEFEATED

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 6 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

COU25-369 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Part 4.5.1 Goals, page 27 of 59, by adding the
following new goals:

e Work with Parks Canada to secure delegated authority for road
management decisions, allowing the Town to pilot traffic restrictions, road
closures, or reservation systems as necessary to protect community
livability and the national park mandate.

e Collaborate with Parks Canada to establish delegated authorities under the
Incorporation Agreement ensuring that traffic management measures and
enforcement are legally supported and measurable.

For: (2): Councillor Christensen and Councillor Pettigrew

Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, and
Councillor Ram

MOTION DEFEATED

COU25-370  Moved by Mayor DiManno

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Appendix D. National Park Planning Context,
page 52 of 59, third sentence of the second paragraph under the heading “Global and Regional
Context”, by:

e Decleting the words “That same year” preceding the words “, the Crown and the Canadian
government” and substituting with the words “Ten years prior in 1877”; and

e Adding the words “had already” following the words “, the Crown and the Canadian government”
so that this sentence reads as follows (emphasis added)

Ten years prior, the Crown and the Canadian government had already negotiated

Treaty 7 with the Blackfoot nations as well as with the Tsuut’ina and Stoney (Iyarhe)
Nakoda.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 7 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

COU25-371 Moved by Councillor Canning

That Bylaw 490 be further amended in Schedule A, Appendix A. Glossary, page 46 of 59, in the
definition of Human Use Management, by deleting the words “who call this place home” after the
words “while improving the quality of life for residents” so that the definition reads as follows:

Human Use Management A tool adopted by national parks and world
heritage sites across North America and around the world to help manage the
impact of people on ecosystems, improve the quality of park experiences for
visitors and residents, while improving the quality of life for residents.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED
COU25-372 Moved, as amended, by Mayor DiManno

That third reading be given to Bylaw 490, the Banff Community Plan, as amended by Motions
COU25-360 to COU25-371.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED
COU25-373 Motion Arising Moved by Councillor Pelham

That Council direct Administration to return to a future meeting of Council, no later than Q2 2026, with
a report outlining options on how the following Key Community Indicators (KCI), plus any additional
indicators that are considered appropriate by Administration, could be reviewed and reported on annually:

e Resident Satisfaction Rates

e Vacancy Rates

e Rental Rates

e Resident Population

e Childcare Stats, including waitlist numbers
e School Student Stats

e Human/Wildlife Encounters

e Electrical/Gas/Water Usage

e Waste Stats

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 8 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

e Community GHG Stats

e Bow Valley Regional Transit Stats
e Traffic Stats

e Visitor Paid Parking Revenue/Stats
e Hotel Occupancy Stats

e Visitor Adjusted Population

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

Council, by unanimous consent, recessed at 3:01 p.m. for a fifteen minute break.

Council reconvened at 3:17 p.m. with Mayor DiManno in the Chair.

3.2 Verbal Briefing: Housing Development

A PowerPoint presentation titled “Housing Development Update”, dated September 16, 2025, was
received for the Corporate Record from Administration with respect to Item 3.2, Verbal Briefing:
Housing Development.

COU25-374 Moved by Mayor DiManno
That with respect to Item 3.2, Verbal Briefing: Housing Development, the following be adopted:

That Council receive the Housing Development Verbal Briefing for the Corporate Record.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 9 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

COU25-375 Motion Arising Moved by Mayor DiManno

That with respect to Item 3.2, Verbal Briefing: Housing Development, the following motion arising
be adopted:

That Council direct Administration to return with a report at Service Review outlining options for
increased funding for the Accessory Dwelling Incentive Program in 2026.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

3.3 Request for Decision: Proposed Public Input Policy C1014

COU25-376  Moved by Mayor DiManno

That with respect to Item 3.3, Request for Decision: Proposed Public Input Policy C1014, the
following be adopted:

That Council adopt proposed Council Policy 1014, Public Input (Attachment 3).

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

Council, by unanimous consent, recessed at 4:45 p.m. for a ten minute break.

Council reconvened at 4:56 p.m. with Mayor DiManno in the Chair.

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 10 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

3.4 Request for Decision: Proposed Council Policy C6000-01 Green Fleet

COU25-377 Moved by Councillor Olver

That with respect to Item 3.4, Request for Decision: Proposed Council Policy C6000-01, Green Fleet,
the following be adopted:

That Council adopt proposed Council Policy C6000-1, Green Fleet, as presented (Attachment 1).

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

3.5 Request for Decision: Rescheduling of the November 12, 2025, Regular Meetings of the
Governance and Finance Committee and Council

COU25-378 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That with respect to Item 3.5, Request for Decision: Rescheduling of the November 12, 2025, Regular
Meetings of the Governance and Finance Committee and Council, the following be adopted:

That Council, pursuant to Section 9.22 of Procedures Bylaw 44-8, revisit Motion COU24-484, adopted
as part of the November 22, 2024, Regular Meeting of Council, to approve the 2025 Council and
Committee Calendar for the 2025-2029 Term of Council, from October 28, 2025, till December 31,
2025.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-379  Moved by Councillor Pelham

That with respect to Item 3.5, Request for Decision: Rescheduling of the November 12, 2025, Regular
Meetings of the Governance and Finance Committee and Council, the following be adopted:

That Council amend the amended 2025 Council and Committee Calendar for the 2025-2029 Term of
Council, from October 28, 2025, till December 31, 2025, by:

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 11 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

e Cancelling the Wednesday, November 12, 2025, Regular Meeting of the Governance and Finance
Committee scheduled for at 9:00 a.m. in the Council Chamber;

e Cancelling the Wednesday, November 12, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council scheduled for 2:00
p-m. in the Council Chamber;

e Scheduling a Regular Meeting of the Governance and Finance Committee for 9:00 a.m. in the
Council Chamber on Tuesday, November 18, 2025; and

e Scheduling a Regular Meeting of Council for 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber on Tuesday,
November 18, 2025.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-380 Moved by Councillor Ram

That with respect to Item 3.5, Request for Decision: Rescheduling of the November 12, 2025, Regular
Meetings of the Governance and Finance Committee and Council, the following be adopted:

That Council approve the 2025 Council and Committee Calendar for the 2025 - 2029 Term of Council,
from October 28, 2025, till December 31, 2025, as amended by Motion COU25-379.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

3.6 Motion: Correspondence Received as part of the July 14, 2025 Regular Meeting of Council

Re: Motion to Issue Annual Written Warning Prior to Parking Violation Ticket for Resident
Permit Renewal

COU25-381 Moved by Councillor Christensen

That with respect to item 3.6, Motion: Correspondence Received as part of the July 14, 2025 Regular
Meeting of Council Re: Motion to Issue Annual Written Warning Prior to Parking Violation Ticket
for Resident Permit Renewal, the following be adopted:

Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 12 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 16, 2025 Confirmed September 29, 2025

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Council direct Administration to return to a future
meeting of Council with a report outlining the current parking ticket issuance process as well as how
changes would affect the process.

Against: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver,
Councillor Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION DEFEATED

40 ADJOURNMENT
COU25-382 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew
That the September 16, 2025, Special Meeting of Council adjourn at 5:33 p.m.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

On Original On Original
Corrie DiManno Libbey McDougall
Mayor Municipal Clerk
Minutes confirmed by: On Original On Original

Page 13 of 13



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025

MINUTES OF THE
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
of the Town of Banff in the Province of Alberta
Monday, September 29, 2025, at 2:00 p.m.

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT

Corrie DiManno
Hugh Pettigrew
Ted Christensen
Grant Canning
Chip Olver
Barb Pelham
Kaylee Ram

Mayor

Councillor and Deputy Mayor
Councillor and Acting Mayor
Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT

None

ADMINISTRATION PRESENT

Kelly Gibson

Palki Biswas

Jason Darrah
Darren Enns
Adrian Field

Paul Godfrey
Barbara King
Sharon Oakley
Katherine Severson
Stan Andronyk
Chris Marvell
Caroline McCartney
Randall McKay
Carolynn Grey
Libbey McDougall

Town Manager

Acting Director, Corporate Services
Director, Communications & Marketing
Director, Planning & Environment
Director, Engineering

Director, Operations

Ditrector, Human Resources

Acting Director, Community Services
Director, Emergency & Protective Services
Manager, Municipal Enforcement
Manager, Resource Recovery

Manager, Operations Support Services
Manager, Strategic Initiatives+ Special Projects
Legislative Advisor

Municipal Clerk

Unconfirmed

(Remote Participation)

(Remote Participation)

Minutes confirmed by:

Page 1 of 11



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025 Unconfirmed

1.0

2.0

CALL TO ORDER

Present in the Council Chamber at Call to Order: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning,
Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham and Councillor Pettigrew.

Absent at Call to Order: (1): Councillor Ram

Mayor DiManno called the September 29, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council to order at 2:00 p.m. and
Councillor Olver provided a land acknowledgment.

CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA

2.1 Agenda for the September 29, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council

A clerical correction was noted on the Agenda Page:

e Page 2 of 108, Item 3.1, by deleting the date “August 11, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council” in the
Item title and substituting with the date “September 08, 2025, Supplementary Public Hearing for
Proposed Bylaw 490, The Bantf Community Plan, and Regular Meeting of Council”.

COU25-383 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That the corrected Agenda for the September 29, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council be amended by
adding the following the following Item of New/Urgent Business:

e Item 10.1, Verbal Request for Decision: Motion From Governance and Finance Committee
FIN25-112 Re: October 30, 2025, Meeting with Parks Superintendent

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham and Councillor Pettigrew
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-384 Moved by Councillor Pelham

That the Revised Agenda for the September 29, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council be confirmed, as
corrected and then amended by Motion COU25-383.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham and Councillor Pettigrew
MOTION CARRIED

Minutes confirmed by:

Page 2 of 11



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025 Unconfirmed

2.2 2025 Council Workplan

Council, by unanimous consent, received the 2025 Council Workplan for the Corporate Record.

3.0 CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MINUTES
The following clerical correction was noted to the Minutes of the September 08, 2025, Supplemental
Public Hearing for Proposed Bylaw 490 and Regular Meeting of Council, page 5 of 23, Item 4.4.8, by
deleting the name “Chirs” and substituting with the name “Chris”.

COU25-385 Moved by Councillor Pelham

That the Minutes for the following meetings be confirmed by way of an omnibus motion:

3.1 Corrected Minutes of the September 08, 2025, Supplementary Public Hearing for Proposed
Bylaw 490, The Banff Community Plan, and Regular Meeting of Council

3.2 Minutes of the September 16, 2025, Special Meeting of Council

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, and Councillor Pettigrew
MOTION CARRIED

4.0 INVITED PRESENTATIONS

No Invited Presentations were scheduled as part of this meeting.

5.0 PUBLIC INPUT ON APPROVED AGENDA ITEMS SCHEDULED AS PART OF THE
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL

5.1 Written Submissions

No Written Submissions for Approved Agenda Items were received for this meeting.

5.2 Verbal Submissions

No Verbal Submissions to Approved Agenda Items were provided at this meeting.

Minutes confirmed by:

Page 3 of 11



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025 Unconfirmed

6.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS

No items of Unfinished Business were scheduled as part of this meeting.

7.0 ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS

7.1 Request for Decision: Squirrel Street Staff Housing Partnership Project with Parks Canada

COU25-386 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That with respect to Item 7.1, Request for Decision: Squirrel Street Staff Housing Partnership Project
with Parks Canada, the following be adopted:

That Council approve a Town of Banff Staff Housing project, in collaboration with Parks Canada, to
be located at 409/413 Squirrel Street, with a maximum Town contribution of up to $6.25 million, with
financing incurred recovered through rents.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, and Councillor Pettigrew

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-387 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That with respect to Item 7.1, Request for Decision: Squirrel Street Staff Housing Partnership Project
with Parks Canada, the following be adopted:

That Council direct Administration to return to a future meeting of Council with financing options
once the final project cost is established.

For: (6): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, and Councillor Pettigrew

MOTION CARRIED

7.2 Request for Decision: Waste Utility Rates Review

Myron Moore, of Mooreview Management Consulting Inc., addressed Council with respect to Item
7.2, Request for Decision: Waste Ultility Rates Review.

Minutes confirmed by:

Page 4 of 11



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025 Unconfirmed

Councillor Ram joined the September 29, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council at 2:20 p.m.

COU25-388 Moved by Councillor Pelham

That with respect to Item 7.2, Request for Decision: Waste Utility Rates Review, the following be
adopted:

That Council direct Administration to return to a future meeting of Council, no later than Q4 2025,
as part of the annual review of Bylaw 388, Fees and Charges, with the following adjustments to

Schedule Q for 2026:

a) Residential Waste Utility rates for 2026 frozen at the 2025 rate with the resulting residential deficit
funded through Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) revenues;

b) The following non-residential rate adjustments effective for 2026:
1. Reduce non-residential cardboard rates by 4% annually to align with projected cost of service
by 2029.
i.  Increase food waste rates by 12% annually, targeting 63% cost recovery by 2029; and
ii.  Maintain current garbage rates to incentivize diversion (e.g., plastics, glass, paper, food waste)
and direct the resulting surplus to fund the Solid Waste Ultility reserves deficits.
For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED
COU25-389 Moved by Councillor Olver

That with respect to Item 7.2, Request for Decision: Waste Utility Rates Review, the following be
adopted:

That Council direct Administration to return to a Return to a future meeting of Council in 2026 with
a Solid Waste Utility Sustainment Reserve Policy that:

a) Defines the goal and intended uses of the reserves;

b) Outlines proposed funding sources which may include the following:

Minutes confirmed by:

Page 5 of 11



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025 Unconfirmed

1. Future Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) revenues (to offset costs of providing
residential recycling services).
i.  Budgeted surpluses from non-residential rates.

¢) Indicates a funding target of $2.25 million by 2029.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

7.3 Request for Decision: Naming Options — Muskrat Street Pedestrian Bridge

COU25-390 Moved by Councillor Ram

That with respect to Item 7.3, Request for Decision: Naming Options — Muskrat Street Pedestrian
Bridge, the following be adopted:

That Council, in accordance with Council Policy C1009, Naming & Sponsorship, and as endorsed by
the Blackfoot Confederacy Tribal Council and the Chiefs of the Confederacy Nations, name the
Muskrat Street Pedestrian Bridge “Thunder Medicine Pipe Bridge”.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-391 Moved by Councillor Olver

That with respect to Item 7.3, Request for Decision: Naming Options — Muskrat Street Pedestrian
Bridge, the following be adopted:

That Council direct Administration to return as part of the 2026 Service Review Process with a New
Service Level Request for work associated with the naming of the Thunder Medicine Pipe Bridge,
formally known as the Muskrat Street Bridge (professionally designed, mounted, and installed signage)
estimated to cost between $12,000 and $15,000.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

Minutes confirmed by:

Page 6 of 11



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025 Unconfirmed

COU25-392 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That with respect to Item 7.3, Request for Decision: Naming Options — Muskrat Street Pedestrian
Bridge, the following be adopted:

That Council Direct that Confidential Attachments 2 and 3 become public documents.
For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED
Council, by unanimous consent, recessed at 3:42 p.m. for a ten-minute break.
Council reconvened at 3:55 p.m. with Mayor DiManno in the Chair.

7.4 Request for Direction: Cancellation of Governance and Finance Committee and Council
Meetings for Monday, October 06, 2025

COU25-393 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That with respect to Item 7.4, Request for Decision: Cancellation of Governance and Finance
Committee and Council Meetings for Monday, October 06, 2025, the following be adopted:

That Council, pursuant to Section 9.22 of Procedures Bylaw 44-8, revisit Motion COU25-187, adopted
as part of the June 09, 2025 Regular Meeting of Council, to approve the Amended 2025 Council and
Committee Calendar until the end of the 2021 — 2025 Term of Council.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

MOTION CARRIED

COU25-394 Moved by Councillor Pelham

That with respect to Item 7.4, Request for Decision: Cancellation of Governance and Finance
Committee and Council Meetings for Monday, October 06, 2025, the following be adopted:

That Council further amend the Amended 2025 Council and Committee Calendar for the 2021-2025
Term of Council by cancelling the following meetings:

e Monday, October 06, 2025, Regular Meeting of the Governance and Finance Committee,

Minutes confirmed by:

Page 7 of 11



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025 Unconfirmed

scheduled for 9:00 a.m. in the Council Chamber; and

e Monday, October 06, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council scheduled for at 2:00 p.m. in the Council
Chamber.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

COU25-395 Moved by Councillor Canning

That with respect to Item 7.4, Request for Decision: Cancellation of Governance and Finance
Committee and Council Meetings for Monday, October 06, 2025, the following be adopted:

That Council approve the Amended 2025 Council and Committee Calendar for the 2021 - 2025 Term
of Council, as further amended by adopted Motion COU25-393.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

8.0 NOTICE OF MOTION

8.1 Notice of Motion: Tunnel Mountain, Mountain Avenue, and Townsite Traffic Safety
Enhancements

COU25-396 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That with respect to Item 8.1, Notice of Motion: Tunnel Mountain, Mountain Avenue, and Townsite
Traffic Safety Enhancements, the following be adopted:

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council direct Administration to increase
enforcement along Tunnel Mountain Drive and Mountain Avenue.

For: (2): Councillor Christensen and Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, and
Councillor Ram

MOTION DEFEATED

Minutes confirmed by:

Page 8 of 11



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025 Unconfirmed

COU25-397 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That with respect to Item 8.1, Notice of Motion: Tunnel Mountain, Mountain Avenue, and Townsite
Traffic Safety Enhancements, the following be adopted:

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Council direct Administration to
Return as part of the 2026 Service Review Process with a report outlining options, costs, and timelines
for measures to:

e Improve pedestrian, micromobility and cyclist safety;
e Enhance traffic calming and speed enforcement;

e Strengthen community messaging and engagement;

e Consider improvements including, but not limited to:

Pathway markings and signage,
Roadway maintenance and wayfinding,
Painted speed limit markings,
Enhanced entry signage,

Expanded traffic calming features, and

VVVVYVYY

Improved education and enforcement around micromobility safety.

For: (2): Councillor Christensen and Councillor Pettigrew

Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, and
Councillor Ram

MOTION DEFEATED

COU25-398 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That with respect to Item 8.1, Notice of Motion: Tunnel Mountain, Mountain Avenue, and Townsite
Traffic Safety Enhancements, the following be adopted:

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Council direct Administration to
advocate to the Province for mandatory helmet legislation for all micromobility users regardless of
age.

For: (2): Councillor Christensen and Councillor Pettigrew
Against: (5): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Olver, Councillor Pelham, and
Councillor Ram

MOTION DEFEATED

Minutes confirmed by:

Page 9 of 11



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025 Unconfirmed

COU25-399  Motion Arising Moved by Mayor DiManno

That with respect to Item 8.1, Notice of Motion: Tunnel Mountain, Mountain Avenue, and Townsite
Traffic Safety Enhancements, the following Motion Arising be adopted:

That Council direct Administration to return as part of the 2026 Service Review Process with a briefing
outlining geographic locations of concern for pedestrian/cyclist/vehicle interactions and potential
options to improve safety in these areas.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor
Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

9.0 COMMITTEE REPORTS
Council, by unanimous consent, received the following Committee Reports for the Corporate Record:

9.1 Approved Corrected Minutes of the August 13, 2025, Regular Meeting of the Municipal Planning

Commission
10.0 NEW/URGENT BUSINESS

Note: Item 10.1 was included as part of the Agenda by way of adopted Council Motions COU25-383
and COU25-384.

10.1  Verbal Request for Decision: Motion From Governance and Finance Committee FIN25-112
Re: October 30, 2025, Meeting with Parks Superintendent

COU25-400 Moved by Mayor DiManno

That with respect to Item 10.1, Verbal Request for Decision: Motion From Governance and Finance
Committee FIN25-112 Re: October 30, 2025, Meeting with Parks Superintendent, the following be
adopted:

That Council request that the agenda for the October 30, 2025, Meeting with the Parks Superintendent
and Council include an item on the Superintendent’s authority to limit private vehicle access to and
within the Town of Banff.

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor

Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram
MOTION CARRIED

Minutes confirmed by:

Page 10 of 11



Town of Banff Regular Meeting of Council
September 29, 2025

11.0 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

No Confidential Items were scheduled as part of this meeting.

12.0 CORRESPONDENCE

No items of Correspondence were received for this meeting.

13.0 ADJOURNMENT

COU25-401 Moved by Councillor Pettigrew

That the September 29, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council adjourn at 5:13 p.m.

Unconfirmed

For: (7): Mayor DiManno, Councillor Canning, Councillor Christensen, Councillor Olver, Councillor

Pelham, Councillor Pettigrew, and Councillor Ram

Corrie DiManno Libbey McDougall
Mayor Municipal Clerk

Minutes confirmed by:

MOTION CARRIED

Page 11 of 11



M Gma" Danielle Duffy <lakelouisecentre@gmail.com>

Staff & Stakeholder Update - Limited Office Hours for Townsites (Week of October

27, 2025)

1 message

LLYK Lotissements Urbains / LLYK Townsites (PC) <llyklotissementsurbains- Fri, Oct 24, 2025 at 4:02
llyktownsites@pc.gc.ca> PM

Staff & Stakeholder Update
Limited Office Hours for Townsites (Week of October 27, 2025)

2025-10-24

The Parks Canada Townsites Office in Lake Louise will have limited hours next week:

Monday, October 27 9:00-12:00/13:00 - 17:00
Tuesday, October 28 CLOSED
Wednesday, October 29 9:00-12:00/13:00-17:00
Thursday, October 30 9:00-12:00/13:00 - 17:00
Friday, October 31 CLOSED

Regular office hours will resume on Monday, November 31,

What you need to know

Residents and stakeholders are reminded that multiple options are available for the payment of Parks Canada invoices.

Online Payments

Payments can be made online at https://parks.canada.ca/payment. An invoice or account number is required to use
this service.

Please note, there is a processing time of approximately five business days before the field unit receives payment
notification. Recent payments may not be reflected on your monthly statement as a result.

By Phone

Credit card payments can be made by calling any of the following offices, regardless of your residential/business
address within the park:


https://parks.canada.ca/payment
https://parks.canada.ca/payment

Radium: 250-347-2201

Field: 250-343-6117

By Mail

Payments can be mailed to:

Finance Department
Parks Canada Agency
PO Box 220

Radium Hot Springs, BC
VOA 1MO

Cheques must be made out to “Receiver General for Canada” and a reference number should be included (invoice
and/or account number).

In Person

Payments may be made in person at the Field Townsites Office, regardless of your residential/business address within
the park:

Field Townsites Office
Parks Canada Administrative Building, 201 Kicking Horse Avenue, Field, BC

Access via Stephen Avenue

Tuesday - Friday (8:00 am — noon / 1:00 pm — 4:30 pm)

Office hours may vary, based on staffing.

Business Licences

Questions regarding business licences should be directed to llykbusinesslicence@pc.gc.ca. Due to high business
volumes, there may be a delay in response time.

Restricted Activity Permits (RAPs)

Questions regarding Restricted Activity Permits should be directed to llyktownsites@pc.gc.ca. Commercial operators
are required to provide a valid national park business licence in order to apply for a RAP.

We appreciate your understanding and are happy to address any questions or concerns you may have.


https://www.google.com/maps/search/201+Kicking+Horse+Avenue,+Field,+BC?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:llykbusinesslicence@pc.gc.ca
mailto:llyktownsites@pc.gc.ca

Thank you!

Questions?

Townsites and Realty

Lake Louise, Yoho and Kootenay Field Unit
llyktownsites@pc.gc.ca

Field: 250-343-6117 / Lake Louise: 403-522-1186

ﬂ Staff and Stakeholder Update_2025-10-24_Limited Office Hours.pdf
96K


mailto:llyktownsites@pc.gc.ca
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=a995a08e23&view=att&th=19a183e6e52a7a3d&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=a995a08e23&view=att&th=19a183e6e52a7a3d&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw

M Gmail Danielle Duffy <lakelouisecentre@gmail.com>

Alberta Tourism Insights - October 17, 2025

1 message

TIAA <info@tiaalberta.ca> Fri, Oct 17, 2025 at 1:00 PM
Reply-To: TIAA <info@tiaalberta.ca>
To: daniellemorine@improvementdistrict9.ca

Alberta Tourism Insights

October 17, 2025

Growing the Municipal Assessment Pie:

Tourism as Core Economic Infrastructure


https://mailchi.mp/8c91a1128d2b/may-30th-newsletter-12774818?e=6ce3fc0614

By Stavros Karlos, Director of Policy & Government Affairs, TIAA

As Alberta heads into municipal elections, it's the perfect time to help new councils understand a
critical truth: tourism isn’t just culture, it's core economic infrastructure.

In his latest piece, former Banff councillor Stavros Karlos explains how thriving tourism economies
directly expand municipal assessment bases, fund essential services, and reduce tax pressure on
residents.

When businesses thrive, assessments grow, and when assessments grow, everyone wins.

3 Read the full article



https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=f723416b96&e=6ce3fc0614

Be Election Ready: Share the Value

of Alberta’s Visitor Economy

As Alberta communities prepare for the 2025 municipal elections, now is the time to make sure
tourism’s story is front and centre in local conversations.

Tourism isn’t just about leisure and travel, it's economic infrastructure. Across Alberta, the visitor
economy fuels jobs, supports small businesses, and drives investment in the very amenities that
make our communities vibrant places to live, work, and visit.

In 2024 alone, Alberta welcomed 38.1 million visitors who spent $14.4 billion,
supported 280,000+ jobs, and generated $2.0 billion in tax revenue for all levels of government.

These numbers tell a powerful story, but they’re only impactful when shared.

To help communities, tourism operators, and local leaders prepare for election discussions, TIAA
has developed a new resource: Alberta’s Visitor Economy: The Economic Significance of
Travel in Alberta.

This tool helps you:
» Highlight tourism’s role in economic development
« Connect visitor activity to municipal revenue and assessment growth

» Advocate for policies that sustain Alberta’s visitor economy and quality of life

As candidates and councils shape their priorities for the years ahead, let’'s ensure tourism’s value
is clearly understood and championed.

&’ Explore Alberta’s Visitor Economy

> Prepare for the 2025 Municipal Elections: Visit TIAA’s Election Resource Hub



https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=0f592827b0&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=0f592827b0&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=1bc0e4df31&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=36f6a378f2&e=6ce3fc0614

Join Alberta’s Tourism Leaders

at the Province’s Premier Policy Event

The Tourism Industry Association of Alberta (TIAA) presents the Alberta Economic Budget
Forum & Premier’s Dinner featuring the GRIT Awards, taking place November 24, 2025 at the
Edmonton Convention Centre.

Join executives, policymakers, and community leaders for Alberta’s signature tourism policy
event, a day of dialogue, insight, and celebration focused on shaping the future of Alberta’s visitor
economy.

New this year, the program features the Alberta GRIT Awards, honouring the innovators and
changemakers driving tourism growth across the province. With visitor spending surpassing $14.4
billion in 2024, Alberta now leads the nation in tourism growth, making this the moment to align
on the economic future we want for our province.

This pivotal gathering will sharpen the narrative, frame the choices ahead, and advance Alberta’s
visitor economy.

® Edmonton Convention Centre | November 24, 2025
¢* Tickets are selling quickly — secure your seat today!


https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=76b168e53a&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=76b168e53a&e=6ce3fc0614

Be apart of the conversation driving Alberta’s tourism policy, register today!

(Lo )

Tourism HR Canada: Help Shape the Future of

Canada’s Tourism Workforce


https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=e40d0b3925&e=6ce3fc0614

Labour challenges continue to be a top concern for tourism businesses across the country. Share
your perspective in the 2025 National Workforce Insights Survey, open from October 13 to 24.

This important survey explores the realities of vacancies, operational costs, and external factors
impacting tourism businesses. Your input will help shape the tools, resources, and policies that
support a strong, skilled workforce and more resilient businesses.

The survey takes about 15-20 minutes to complete, and all responses are confidential and
anonymized.

%’ Take the Survey Here



https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=b78bae213d&e=6ce3fc0614

Travel Alberta: International Travel

to Alberta on the Rise

Alberta is welcoming more international visitors than ever. International arrivals were up 15%
year-over-year in June, continuing steady growth since April. This upward trend highlights the
success of Travel Alberta’s global marketing efforts and the strength of our collective industry
partnerships.

New flight routes are also driving results:
* 53% growth in arrivals from Mexico City
* 59% growth in arrivals from South Korea

Tourism continues to be a powerful economic driver for communities across the province. Explore
the latest data and insights through Travel Alberta’s tourism dashboards to help identify trends
and opportunities in your region.

¥ View the Dashboard



https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=8f5da33e4d&e=6ce3fc0614

New Opportunity: Alberta
Parks Facility Operating
Agreement

Alberta Parks has issued a new Request
for Proposals for the Little Bow Facility
Operating Group. This opportunity
invites private operators to manage and
maintain select campgrounds, day use
areas, and related facilities under a
Facility Operating Agreement.

* Mandatory Information Session:
October 23, 2025 — 9:30 a.m. (virtual,
pre-registration required)

* Mandatory Site Tour: October 23,
2025 - 1:00 p.m. (in person, pre-
registration required)

* RFP Close: November 12, 2025 - 2:00
p.m.

4’ Learn more

Record Summer for YYC
Calgary International Airport

YYC Calgary International Airport
welcomed over four million travellers
in July and August, the highest summer
traffic in its history. This milestone reflects
growing travel demand, stronger
business connections, and continued
momentum for Alberta’s visitor economy.

YYC now offers 108 non-stop
destinations worldwide, including 14
new routes added this year. Major
investments such as the West Runway
Rehabilitation, Centralized Passenger
Screening, and YYC AeroNex are


https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=85b7296db0&e=6ce3fc0614

helping position the airport as a hub for
innovation and economic growth.

¢ Read more from YYC Calgary
Airports

Apply Now: Travel Alberta’s Tourism

Investment Program

Travel Alberta’s Tourism Investment Program is now open for applications until October 20,
2025, at 4 p.m.

Funding is available through three streams:
e Product Development
+ Rural Development and Promotion

 Events and Festivals


https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=0246fc32af&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=0246fc32af&e=6ce3fc0614

The program supports the growth of Alberta’s tourism industry by fostering new experiences,
strengthening rural destinations, and expanding the province’s visitor economy.

Before applying:

» Review the details for each funding stream

» Prepare your business plan

¢ Check the FAQ list and available resources

+ Read Travel Alberta’s latest tips for success

& Learn more and apply

More News Shorts:

INTERNATIONAL/NATIONAL

Canada’s new government is lowering costs to help Canadians get ahead |
Government of Canada

Canada Named One of the World's Top 10 Countries in Condé Nast Traveler's 2025
Readers' Choice Awards | PR Newswire

Canada Strong Pass Makes a Comeback | Travel Pulse Canada

Leading indicator of international arrivals to Canada, September 2025 | Stats Canada

ALBERTA TOURISM NEWS

The Perfect Itinerary for Jasper Dark Sky Festival’s First Weekend | Tourism Jasper
The perfect ski holiday in Canada’s oldest national park | The Telegraph

Visitors of Alberta National Parks to benefit from Canada Strong Pass extension |
CityNews

Parks could be busy next year with return of free park pass | CBC

IMMIGRATION

Express Entry: PNP candidates invited in latest draw | CIC News

New Canada Unemployment Rates For LMIAs Now In Effect Until 2026 | Immigration
News Canada


https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=83dc954651&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=5bfde002d0&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=2be2e7a31f&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=39d091cada&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=88bbc986e8&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=88bbc986e8&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=cb66c97d4a&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=cb66c97d4a&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=0edada5323&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=d63bab636e&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=0bce45c4ae&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=0d2e902a45&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=b1c6bac825&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=b1c6bac825&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=515cfea5cb&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=cb5aeeca64&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=d0250066e9&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=d0250066e9&e=6ce3fc0614

+ IRCC has unveiled which PR applications it plans to process in 2025 | CIC News

AIR
» Canada Urged to Create Digital Air Travel Strategy | Travel Pulse

+ Air Canada anticipates a rebound in transborder travel | Travel Weekly

Copyright (C) 2023, Tourism Industry Association of Alberta. All rights reserved.

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe


https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=95694ba666&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=95694ba666&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=d1f56e2f87&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=d1f56e2f87&e=6ce3fc0614
mailto:info@tiaalberta.ca
mailto:info@tiaalberta.ca
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=50b2362752&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=50b2362752&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=9034bef3fb&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=53ae2d9b41&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/track/click?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=3781f6837f&e=6ce3fc0614
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/profile?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=e5f2c73f26&e=6ce3fc0614&c=59c7e025a4
https://tiaalberta.us21.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=45289876e4e8ef273ff07f267&id=e5f2c73f26&t=b&e=6ce3fc0614&c=59c7e025a4

M Gma" Danielle Duffy <lakelouisecentre@gmail.com>

Listening, Learning, and Giving Thanks
1 message

Banff Canmore Foundation <connect@banffcanmorefoundation.org> Wed, Oct 8, 2025 at 1:29 PM

Reply-To: us22-40ecc92cd4-72553af806@inbound.mailchimpapp.net
To: lakelouisecentre@gmail.com

View this email in your browser

Season of Gratitude & Community

The National Day for Truth and Reconciliation, observed last week, invites us to pause and remember
that Reconciliation does not begin or end in a single day, but is a shared and ongoing practice of listening
and learning together.



https://mailchi.mp/banffcanmorefoundation/october-newsletter-49974?e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=8ad3d6c321&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=d771e36653&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=09414952d3&e=f2fdcb37b6

Circles That Guide the Valley

In the Bow Valley, Reconciliation is lived through relationships where Indigenous stories are shared, and
truth and vision for the future can be heard. Earlier this year, grassroots Indigenous leaders bringing MinT
hrpa to life, an emerging cultural centre, convened to review BCF Community Grant applications
connected to Truth & Reconciliation.

This circle created space for decisions to be guided by Indigenous worldviews and values, turning a
transactional review into a moment of listening and respect. Six proposals connected to Truth and
Reconciliation and Indigenous leadership were funded in 2025:

1. Canadian Mountain Arts Foundation — $7,240
Stoney Language and Culture Classes in Mini Thni
2. Canmore Museum — $3,868
Stories of the Land
3. lyahrhe Nakoda Food Bank Society — $15,000
INFBS Health & Wellness Food Hamper Program
4. McDougall Stoney Mission Society — $8,000
Historic Morleyville Interpretive Trail — Phase 3
5. Spirit North — $7,500
Voices of Resilience: Sharing Indigenous Stories Through Digital Storytelling
6. The Howl Experience — $10,000

Supporting Youth Engagement in ReconiliACTION in the Bow Valley

These grants are fuelled by the community, please consider making a donation.

Season of Gratitude & Harvest


https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=84aa225c7b&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=1c0116c631&e=f2fdcb37b6

Gratitude in the Bow Valley looks like many things: a neighbour showing up with food, a volunteer
giving their time, a family planting seeds for the future. As we gather for Thanksgiving, we are
reminded that generosity is what carries this community forward. Each contribution, big or small,
helps programs and initiatives take root and keeps the valley strong for the years ahead. As we
gather with family and friends over the holiday, what conversations can be sparked about ways to
express gratitude and share our abundance? Find ideas for giving today —

Stories of Family Giving


https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=912ce59f14&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=e9ae5c5003&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=e9ae5c5003&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=e9ae5c5003&e=f2fdcb37b6

In every corner of the Bow Valley, families and community members are planting seeds of
generosity that will grow for generations. Here are just a few of the legacies shaping our valley:

1.

The Glover Family Fund —A family whose giving is rooted in connection to the land and
community, ensuring their support ripples outward in meaningful ways. Read more —

. Paving the Road Less Travelled —A story of how Christie Foreman and Christopher Wong

are opening new paths of possibility by funding education opportunities that might otherwise
remain out of reach. Discover their impact —

. The David M. Bayne Legacy —Honouring a life of service and philanthropy, family and

friends inspired by David’s life are having a lasting impact. Explore the legacy —

. YWCA Banff Endowment Fund —Founded by the family of Dr. Priscilla Wilson, Banff’s first

female physician, this partnership ensures long-term support for women, children, and
families, building stability and strength year after year. Learn more —

. How Ken Hughes Is Building a Living Legacy —Reflecting one remarkable family’s

commitment to building community, The Hughes Fund is creating impact today while shaping
a stronger tomorrow. Read Ken’s story —

. Living Values, Leaving Legacies —One woman'’s generous estate gift sparks her family to

reflect on how personal values can create lasting change for future generations. Read the
reflection —



https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=3132ee18ed&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=92471f4395&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=892056966e&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=5bf39fd67b&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=0fd9a97146&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=1ec1036cfb&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=52ab45c46c&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=52ab45c46c&e=f2fdcb37b6

New Beginnings: 2025 Scholarship Recipients

This fall, new journeys of learning begin. Meet the Bow Valley students who are heading off to universities,

colleges, and training programs with support from BCF scholarships. Their stories reflect the talent and
promise of the next generation.

Meet the 2025 Scholarship Recipients

Consider donating to the Canmore Library Fund.


https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=9e49ed8b02&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=0d88fab756&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=ef16774cfd&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=ef16774cfd&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=dabcc624a3&e=f2fdcb37b6

Banff Public Library is a place of discovery and connection for locals and visitors alike.
The library offers a welcoming space to read, learn, and share ideas that expand
knowledge and spark curiosity. Consider donating to the Banff Library Fund.

September 8

Mark Your Calendar

. Banff Pride Festival — Oct 3—13
. Canmore Pride Festival — October 4-12

- National Volunteer Action Strategy (NVAS) RoundTable
in Banff — October 16

. Sisterhood Summit: Embracing Women’s Health — Oct
30

. Banff Centre Mountain Film & Book Festival — 50th
Anniversary — Nov 1-9

- Biosphere Institute Square Dance Fundraiser — Nov
21, Cornerstone Theatre, Canmore

Community Powered Philanthropy

Explore Ways to Make a

Estate Planning & Legacy. Difference

Giving
Discover the various ways to give and find
Leave a gift in your will - it's a seed the best option for you.
that will grow in the Bow Valley for
generations. Learn more — Learn More —


https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=0b67eb31bd&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=c73842f1f8&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=a21fcc0a30&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=a21fcc0a30&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=bcf236740e&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=3c1b2c7a8f&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=3c1b2c7a8f&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=a2fbff7ad1&e=f2fdcb37b6

Copyright (C) 2025 Banff Canmore Foundation. All rights reserved.
You are receiving this email because you opted in via our website.

Our mailing address is:
Banff Canmore Foundation 214 Banff Ave PO Box 3100 Banff, AB T1L 1C7 Canada

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe


https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=372320268d&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=372320268d&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=30ae47de67&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=30ae47de67&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=033a2a4db4&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=033a2a4db4&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/track/click?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=3856607fc6&e=f2fdcb37b6
https://www.google.com/maps/search/214+Banff+Ave?entry=gmail&source=g
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/profile?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=d022eb7fd2&e=f2fdcb37b6&c=cb8bd88b72
https://banffcanmorefoundation.us22.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2&id=d022eb7fd2&t=b&e=f2fdcb37b6&c=cb8bd88b72
https://login.mailchimp.com/signup/email-referral/?aid=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2
https://login.mailchimp.com/signup/email-referral/?aid=0219fa31c9a0d862e7652c5a2






















M Gma" Danielle Duffy <lakelouisecentre@gmail.com>

Fwd: Letter from Jan Simpson, CUPW National President

1 message

Dave Schebek <daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca> Fri, Oct 3, 2025 at 12:40 PM
To: Danielle Duffy <danielleduffy@improvementdistrict9.ca>

FYI

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Marty Le Gallez <mlegallez@cupw-sttp.org>

Date: Thu, Oct 2, 2025 at 12:56 PM

Subject: Letter from Jan Simpson, CUPW National President

To: daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca <daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca>

BY EMAIL

October 2, 2025
Chairperson Dave Schebek

Improvement District of No. 9 (Banff)
PO Box 58
Lake Louise (AB) TOL 1E0

daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca
Dear Chairperson Schebek,
Re: Federal Government Attacks Public Postal Service — Stop the Cuts!

| had written you a few days ago to let you know about the pending mandate review of Canada Post and the Canadian
Postal Service Charter. It seems that the Government could not wait for public input and instead chose to announce
drastic service cuts. These cuts are based on the Industrial Inquiry Commission (IIC) recommendations made by William
Kaplan — a process that had very little public awareness or consultation. The cuts include:

e Ending door-to-door delivery for four million households, eliminating thousands of jobs.

e Scrapping the moratorium on post office closures which could lead to degraded service or the complete removal of
community post offices from some municipalities.

o Degrading service standards for mail, especially when some peopile still rely on it for daily needs.

These cuts will have a particularly hard impact on seniors, people with disabilities, and rural, remote and Indigenous
communities. Minister Lightbound made no announcements about how Canada Post could increase services and
diversify its revenue streams.

Postal workers went on a nation-wide strike to protect this vital public service and because we are still without new
collective agreements after two years of negotiations. We know it's not easy for many to live without the high-quality


mailto:mlegallez@cupw-sttp.org
mailto:daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca
mailto:daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca
mailto:daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca
mailto:daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca
mailto:daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca
mailto:daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca

postal service that we are proud to deliver, but we ask for your support in defending our public post office.
I am asking your municipality to pass or update your resolution to:

1) Demand an immediate halt to the service cuts, to look instead for ways to increase services and revenues in other
areas, and that no mandate review takes place until Canada Post returns to stabilized operations,

2) Ask the Government to commit to a fully transparent, public process for the upcoming mandate review involving
input and hearings from all stakeholders in all regions, and;

3) Make a written and/or oral submission to the mandate review — if you have the capacity and depending upon how
the review is structured.

Sincerely,

Jan Simpson
National President

Canadian Union of Postal Workers
Encl.
c.c.: CUPW National Executive Board and Regional Executive Committees, CUPW Locals, CUPW Specialists

/mlg cope 225
Dave Schebek
Chair, Improvement District 9

ﬂ 2025-10-01__ Resolution Municipalities_E.pdf
176K


https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=a995a08e23&view=att&th=199ab60cd5067c54&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=199ab605207722b58352&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=a995a08e23&view=att&th=199ab60cd5067c54&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=199ab605207722b58352&safe=1&zw

I_nformation Bulletin 06/2025

Key Municipal Dates
October 1 — December 31, 2025

October 1

October 6

October 11

October 11

October 13

October 16

October 17

©2025 Government of Alberta | October 7, 2025 | Municipal Affairs

Classification: Public

Late filing fee of $500 is imposed on candidates that accepted contributions
(including self-contributions) and registered third party advertisers that have not
filed required disclosure statements. See Sections 147.7(2) and 184(2) of the
Local Authorities Election Act (LAEA).

Notice of Election Day advertisement (first week). See Sections 35 and 158.1 of
the LAEA.

For municipal candidates, first day for the secretary to present a report at a
council meeting after the September 30" filing deadline on late filing of
candidates that accepted contributions; the report is posted on the municipal
website no later than the meeting date. See Sections 147.7(2) and 147.8(1) of
the LAEA.

For school board trustee candidates, first day the secretary of the school board
must transmit a report regarding the September 30" filing deadline on late filing
of candidates that accepted contributions to the school board, which shall on its
receipt make the report public. See Sections 147.7(2) and 147.8(1) of the LAEA.

Notice of Election Day advertisement (second week). See Sections 35 and 158.1
of the LAEA.

Conflict Resolution Day, held on the third Thursday of October, is a time to focus

on resolving conflict in positive way and includes an opportunity to participate in a
learning session over the lunch hour, make a municipal proclamation or have any
other events that would be of benefit to your community. For more information or

to register for an online session, please visit: https://adralberta.com/conflict-

resolution-day/.

The last day for municipalities and intermunicipal planning agencies to submit an
application to host an intern (administrator, finance officer, or land-use planner) in
the 2026 Municipal Internship Program.

Learn more about the Municipal Internship Program at:
https://www.alberta.ca/municipal-internship-program.

Aperton



October 20

October 22

October 24

October 24

October 27

October 29

October 31

November 3

November 3

November 8

November 28

December 1

December 1

©2025 Government of Alberta | October 7, 2025 | Municipal Affairs

Classification: Public

Election Day. See Section 11 of the LAEA.

Deadline to request a recount (4:00 p.m.). See Section 98 of the LAEA.

Complete recount, if required, by 12:00 p.m. (noon). See Section 98.2 of the
LAEA.

Announce and post statement of the results, send signed statement to relevant
Deputy Minister. See Section 97 of the LAEA.

Deadline to receive a request for a recount 12:00 p.m. (noon) requested by
runner-up candidate. See Section 98.1(3) of the LAEA.

Deadline to complete recount by 12:00 p.m. (noon). See Section 98.1 of the
LAEA.

Send notices to candidates and to registered third party advertisers who have not
paid the late filing fee. See Sections 7.7(4), 184(5), and 205 of the LAEA.

Last day to hold an organizational meeting. See Section 192 of the Municipal
Government Act (MGA).

Last day to hold councillor orientation training on first set of topics.
See Section 201.1(1)(a) of the MGA.

Last day for an elector to request a judicial recount. See Section 103 of the
LAEA.

Deadline to submit application for the Intermunicipal Collaboration stream of the
Alberta Community Partnership grant program. Please see:
https://www.alberta.ca/alberta-community-partnership.

First day to destroy ballot boxes (unless ruled otherwise by a judge).
See Section 101(1) of the LAEA.

Last day for a candidate, an elected authority, or an elector to initiate a court
process to challenge the validity of an election. See Part 5 of the LAEA.

Aperton



December 1 Last day for a municipality to appeal to the Land and Property Rights Tribunal the
amount of an equalized assessment in the year in which the equalized
assessment is prepared, if the Minister has sent the report by November 1. See
Section 320 of the MGA. Otherwise, the deadline is 30 days from the date the
Minister sends the report. See Section 321 of the MGA.

December 31 Municipalities must submit the 4th quarterly installment to the Alberta School
Foundation Fund or to a board. See Section 162 of the Education Act.

December 31 Last day to pass an interim operating and capital budget for the next fiscal year.
See Section 242 and 245 of the MGA.

Municipal Affairs The Fall 2025 edition of MAATI will be offered online from November 24 —
Administrators’ December 12. Information about the sessions and how to register is available on
Training Initiative the Training for Municipal Officials website at https://www.alberta.ca/training-for-
(MAATI) municipal-officials.
Please Note Non-Statutory Considerations for Municipal Election

For non-statutory considerations, please review the 2025 general election
checklist on the Municipal Elections Overview website:
https://www.alberta.ca/municipal-elections-overview.

Canada Post Service Disruption Considerations for Municipal Election

The department is suggesting that those municipalities who are offering special
ballots under the LAEA, (sections 77.1 and 77.21), consider having special
ballots picked up at the local administration office or send by courier service
during the Canada Post strike (LAEA section 77.21 Receipt of completed special
ballot packages). You may wish to consider the special ballot packages be
couriered to the location where they will be processed.

Additionally, the department recognizes that the Canada Post strike may impact
the distribution of notices for advance voting or election day. Under section 35(2)
of the LAEA, municipalities may deliver a notice to every residence in the local
jurisdiction at least one week before election day. This provision offers flexibility
in ensuring electors are informed, even in the absence of regular postal service.
Municipalities may also wish to review their local advertising bylaws to identify
other permitted methods of notice delivery, such as signage, or digital platforms,
which could support broader public awareness during service disruptions.

©2025 Government of Alberta | October 7, 2025 | Municipal Affairs

Classification: Public ‘Atb‘@"bﬁ-.



M Gma" Danielle Duffy <lakelouisecentre@gmail.com>

Exciting New Employee Accommodations at The Gateway!
1 message

Tanya Shantz <Tanya.Shantz@edonmgmt.com> Wed, Oct 15, 2025 at 1:41 PM
To: "daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca" <daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca>,
"jeanmarcstelter@improvementdistrict9.ca" <jeanmarcstelter@improvementdistrict9.ca>,
"donbeaulieu@improvementdistrict9.ca" <donbeaulieu@improvementdistrict9.ca>, "juliecanning@improvementdistrict9.ca"
<juliecanning@improvementdistrict9.ca>, "alexandraparkinson@improvementdistrict9.ca"
<alexandraparkinson@improvementdistrict9.ca>

Cc: "danielleduffy@improvementdistrict9.ca" <danielleduffy@improvementdistrict9.ca>, "kurtispratt@improvementdistrict9.ca"
<kurtispratt@improvementdistrict9.ca>

Good afternoon ID9 Council Members!

| am writing to share some exciting news about brand-new staff accommodations available starting December 1st at
the Gateway at Three Sisters.

Affordable housing and accessible staff accommodations are vital to our communities. By securing suitable housing,
businesses can attract and retain the essential employees they need to succeed and thrive.

| would be delighted to meet with any or all of you to provide further details about our fully furnished suites at The
Gateway, at your convenience. Additionally, if you know of any employers looking for accommodations for their
employees, please feel free to share my contact information.

For your convenience, | have included additional details about our accommodations below as well as in the
attached brochure .

Warm regards,
Tanya

The
Gateway in Canmore is ideal for businesses looking to provide housing solutions for their
employees.




Our fully furnished three and four-bedroom suites are available for occupancy
starting December 1st and are thoughtfully designed with the needs of employees in mind.

Each bedroom features a queen size bed, private bathroom, window(s), and mini fridge.
Residents will also enjoy the convenience of

included.

Located just steps from local public transit, residing at the Gateway offers unparalleled
convenience and easy access to

free transportation. The Gateway's mixed-use development also offers a range of convenient
retail amenities, including IGA, Sobeys Liquor, Dollarama, Pet Value and a gas bar with more
announcements coming soon!

Please feel free to reach out to me with any questions or if you'd like to explore this further. |
conduct weekly tours of the accommodations and would be happy to arrange a viewing at
your convenience.

@ Gateway-Residential-Brochure_FINAL_Web.pdf
1886K


https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=a995a08e23&view=att&th=199e96a65f78cd2f&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=a995a08e23&view=att&th=199e96a65f78cd2f&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw

M Gma" Danielle Duffy <lakelouisecentre@gmail.com>

CBR-24-0459 - FCM Funding Decision

1 message
Maryline Jean-Frangois <mjfrancois@fcm.ca> Thu, Oct 23, 2025 at 8:48 AM

To: "daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca" <daveschebek@improvementdistrict9.ca>
Cc: "danielleduffy@improvementdistrict9.ca" <danielleduffy@improvementdistrict9.ca>

Title of the initiative: Undertaking a GHG Reduction Pathway Study for five municipal facilities of the Improvement
District No. 9, Alberta

Case File: CBR-24-0459

Dear Mayor Dave Schebek,

Congratulations!

| am pleased to present you with the attached letter , stating FCM'’s funding approval for this initiative.

As specified in this letter, your initiative has been approved for a maximum grant amount of $63,500 up to 80% of eligible
costs.

We would like to provide you with your funding agreement as soon as possible. An agreement questionnaire will be sent
to you shortly that once completed will help us draft the FCM grant agreement.

Regards,

Maryline Jean-Francgois

Maryline Jean-Frangois | shenerrelle

Project Assistant, Funding Services | Green Municipal Fund
Adjoint(e) de projet, Services de financement | Fonds municipal vert
T. 1-613-907-6223

FEDERATION FEDERATION .
OF CANADMAN  CANADIENNE DES “ f in n
MUNICIPALITIES  MUNICIPALITES

As we move forward with our commitment to reconciliation, FCM acknowledges that our head offices are located on
the unceded, unsurrendered territory of the Anishinaabe Algonquin Nation whose presence here reaches back to time
immemorial. We recognize and honour the historic and ongoing contributions of Indigenous peoples across the
country. Full Statement


https://fcm.ca/
https://fcm.ca/
https://twitter.com/FCM_online
https://twitter.com/FCM_online
https://bsky.app/profile/fcm.ca
https://bsky.app/profile/fcm.ca
https://www.facebook.com/FederationofCanadianMunicipalities
https://www.facebook.com/FederationofCanadianMunicipalities
https://www.linkedin.com/company/federation-of-canadian-municipalities
https://www.linkedin.com/company/federation-of-canadian-municipalities
https://www.youtube.com/user/FCMChannel
https://www.youtube.com/user/FCMChannel
https://www.instagram.com/fcmgram/
https://www.instagram.com/fcmgram/
https://fcm.ca/en/about-fcm/corporate-resources/land-acknowledgement

Dans le cadre de son engagement pour favoriser la réconciliation, la FCM tient a reconnaitre que ses siéges sociaux
sont situés sur le territoire non cédé de la Nation anichinabée algonquine, présente en ces lieux depuis des temps
immémoriaux. Nous reconnaissons également les contributions passées et présentes des peuples autochtones au
pays. Déclaration complete

E LTR_CBR-24-0459_ExecutiveDecisionLetter_2025-10-23_v1.0FIN_eng.pdf
198K


https://fcm.ca/fr/a-propos/informations-sur-la-fcm/reconnaissance-des-territoires
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=a995a08e23&view=att&th=19a118b7a3841152&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=a995a08e23&view=att&th=19a118b7a3841152&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw

FEDERATION FEDERATION

OF CANADIAN CANADIENNE DES

MUNICIPALITIES MUNICIPALITES
October 23, 2025

His Worship Mayor Dave Schebek and Members of Council
Improvement District No. 9

17th Floor, Commerce Place, 10155 102 Street NW
Edmonton, Alberta

T5J 4L4

Project Title: Undertaking a GHG Reduction Pathway Study for five
municipal facilities of the Improvement District No. 9, Alberta
Application Number: CBR-24-0459

Dear Mayor Dave Schebek and Members of Council;

On behalf of the Green Municipal Fund (GMF) Council and FCM’s Executive
Committee, | would like to congratulate Improvement District No. 9 on its
successful funding application for the above-noted initiative.

It is my pleasure to confirm that Improvement District No. 9 has been approved for
a grant in the amount of up to $63,500 .

In the near future, Sylie Fontaine will contact Improvement District No. 9 to finalize
the agreement for this funding. FCM’s obligation to fund the above-noted initiative
will only become binding once the agreement is signed.

FCM, in partnership with the Government of Canada, oversees public
announcements regarding GMF-supported initiatives. Until our media relations
team (media@fcm.ca) contacts the lead applicant or municipality to facilitate a
media announcement, discussion of the application or the funding must remain
private, except if reporting to municipal council. We kindly ask you to refrain from
statements or any public form of communication related to the status of the
application or funding until a media announcement led by FCM and the
Government of Canada is complete.

.12


mailto:media@fcm.ca

-2-
Thank you for your interest in GMF. We look forward to working with you to improve the

quality of life in your community, and to sharing the results of your initiative with
communities across Canada.

Sincerely,

Alan De Sousa
Chair, Green Municipal Fund Council

ADS/SF: mjf

cc: Danielle Duffy
danielleduffy@improvementdistrict9.ca



	8l. CBR-24-0459 - FCM Funding Decision.pdf
	LTR_CBR-24-0459_ExecutiveDecisionLetter_2025-10-23_v1.0FIN_eng.pdf
	Project Title: Undertaking a GHG Reduction Pathway Study for five municipal facilities of the Improvement District No. 9, Alberta


	8c. Town of Banff September 29, 2025, Regular Meeting of Council.pdf
	COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT
	COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT
	ADMINISTRATION PRESENT

	8b. Town of Banff September 16, 2025, Special Meeting of Council.pdf
	COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT
	COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT
	ADMINISTRATION PRESENT

	8a. Town of Banff September 08, 2025, Supplementary Public Hearing for Proposed Bylaw 490.pdf
	COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT
	COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT
	ADMINISTRATION PRESENT




